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STOCK CODE
767
# Mr. Guo Jintong was appointed as an executive Director and the Chairman

on 2 February 2018. Mr. Li Jiuhua was appointed as an executive Director
on 7 September 2017 and the chief executive officer of the Company on 6
October 2017. Mr. Huang Chuan Fu resigned as the Chairman on 7
September 2017 and an executive Director on 6 October 2017. Each of Mr.
Liang Jian Hua, Ms. Jia Hui and Mr. Jiang Yi Ren resigned as an executive
Director on 6 October 2017.

## Ms. Gao Zhenyun was appointed as a non-executive Director on 2 February
2018 and served as an executive Director and the vice Chairlady from 7
September 2017 to 1 February 2018. Mr. Yao Luo was appointed as a non-
executive Director on 7 September 2017. Ms. Yu Yang was appointed as a
non-executive Director on 6 October 2017. Mr. Bai Tianhui was appointed
as a non-executive Director and the Chairman on 7 September 2017 and
resigned as a non-executive Director and the Chairman on 2 February
2018.

* Ms. Ko Nga Kit was appointed as Company Secretary on 29 March 2018 to
fill the vacancy caused by the resignation of Mr. Young Ho Kee Bernard
who was appointed as the Company Secretary to replace Ms. Zhang Tan
Fung on 14 September 2017.

*x Mr. Li Jiuhua was appointed as a member on 2 February 2018. Ms. Gao
Zhenyun has been a member during the period from 6 October 2017 to 1
February 2018. Mr. Huang Chuan Fu ceased to be a member from
6 October 2017.
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LETTER FROM THE BOARD
EEEKMF

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Director(s)”) (the
“Board"”) of Asia Pacific Silk Road Investment Company Limited
(formerly known as Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited) (the
“Company”), | am pleased to report the financial results,
operations and other aspects of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the "Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017.

This report is presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is
the same as the functional currency of the Company.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’'s revenue was
approximately HK$273,347,000 (2016: HK$555,386,000) and the
Group recorded a profit of approximately HK$87,449,000 (2016:
profit of HK$333,064,000), the basic and diluted earnings per
share were HK2.13 cents and HKO0.56 cents respectively (2016:
basic and diluted earnings per share were HK9.40 cents and
HK2.18 cents respectively).

As at 31 December 2017, the consolidated net assets of the
Group were approximately HK$4,180,232,000 (31 December
2016: HK$4,081,069,000).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company, and during the
year ended 31 December 2017, the Group was principally
engaged in the business of operation of peer-to-peer (“P2P")
financing platform and other loan facilitation services, money
lending and securities investments.
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Operation of P2P Financing Platform and Other Loan
Facilitation Services Business

On 20 October 2015, the Company completed the acquisition
(the “P2P Acquisition”) of 96% of the issued share capital of
Katar Global Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Katar Global
Group”) from Allied Summit Inc., at the consideration of
HK$2,400 million (the “Consideration”), satisfied by the way of
issuance of non-redeemable convertible notes of the Company in
the principal amount of HK$2,400 million (the “Convertible
Notes”). Since then, the Group, through the Katar Global Group
and relevant structured contracts (the “Structured Contracts”),
is principally engaged in the operation of a P2P online financing
platform in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"), matching
borrowers with private lenders for various financial products
through the internet under the “CAIJIA” brand, which is
conducted via the website (www.91caijia.com) (the “Caijia
Website”) and other loan facilitation services. Details of the P2P
Acquisition have been disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 10 July 2015, 16 October 2015 and 20 October
2015 and the circular of the Company dated 29 September 2015
(the “Circular”). During the year ended 31 December 2017, a
segment revenue of approximately HK$164,730,000 (2016:
HK$490,662,000) and a segment profit of approximately
HK$151,055,000 (2016: HK$390,504,000) were recorded. The
decrease in segment revenue and profit was primarily due to the
decrease in provision of P2P financing platform services during
the year ended 31 December 2017.

Money Lending Business

Since obtaining the money lenders licence under the Money
Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong) in
2011, Joy Wealth Finance Limited (“Joy Wealth”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, has provided a wide variety of
loans with an accumulated amount of approximately HK$2,536
million (2016: HK$2,267 million). Interest rates ranged from 9%-—
15% per annum during the current year (2016: 9%-15%). For the
year ended 31 December 2017, the interest income recorded by
Joy Wealth was approximately HK$90,176,000 (2016:
HK$62,256,000) whereas there was no reversal of impairment
(2016: Nil) on the loan and interest receivables. Details on the
loan and interest receivables are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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LETTER FROM THE BOARD
ExgRH

Securities Investments Business

As at 31 December 2017, the Group was holding several
investments which are equity securities listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for long
term investment. For the year ended 31 December 2017, these
investments in the listed securities led to a net fair value loss of
approximately HK$11,518,000 (2016: net fair value loss of
HK$368,508,000) recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income while there was no gain or loss on
disposal (2016: net gain of HK$30,189,000) recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. The impairment loss
recognised in the statement of profit or loss for the year is due
to the significant decline in the market value of certain listed
equity investment during the year. Significant investments in
listed securities are discussed as below.

Investment in shares of Imperial Pacific

The major balance of the aforesaid listed securities represented
the Group’s investment in 5,426,900,000 shares of Imperial
Pacific International Holdings Limited (a company whose shares
are listed on the Stock Exchange with Stock Code: 1076)
("Imperial Pacific”), representing approximately 3.8% of the
issued share capital of Imperial Pacific as at 31 December 2017.
Imperial Pacific, through its subsidiaries, is mainly engaged in (i)
gaming and resort business, including the development and
operation of integrated resort on the Island of Saipan.

As at 31 December 2017, the fair value of the shares of Imperial
Pacific held by the Group amounted to approximately
HK$586,105,000 (31 December 2016: HK$575,251,000),
representing 80.1% (31 December 2016: 80.1%) of the Group's
total investment in listed securities. No disposal nor addition of
shares of Imperial Pacific was noted during the year ended 31
December 2017 (2016: Nil). The net fair value gain recognised as
other comprehensive gain for the investment in shares of
Imperial Pacific during the year ended 31 December 2017 was
approximately HK$10,854,000 (2016: loss of
HK$341,895,000).

net fair value
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Investment in shares of Huarong Int Fin

The Group also held 36,786,000 shares of Huarong International
Financial Holdings Limited (a company whose shares are listed on
the Stock Exchange with Stock Code: 993) (“Huarong Int Fin"),
representing approximately 1.0% of the issued share capital of
Huarong Int Fin as at 31 December 2017. Huarong Int Fin,
through its subsidiaries, is principally engaged
futures and options contracts brokerage, provision of margin
financing, corporate finance and asset management services and
direct investment in equities, bonds, funds, derivative
instruments and other financial products.

in securities,

As at 31 December 2017, the fair value of the shares of Huarong
Int Fin held by the Group amounted to approximately
HK$93,069,000 (31 December 2016: HK$112,197,000),
representing 12.7% (31 December 2016: 15.6%) of the Group's
total investment in listed securities. During the year ended 31
December 2017, investment in shares of Huarong Int Fin brought
a net fair value loss of approximately HK19,128,000 recognised as
other comprehensive loss (2016: net fair value loss of
HK$30,096,000). There was no disposal nor addition of shares of
Huarong Int Fin during the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
gain of HK$30,189,000 from disposal of 24,000,000 shares).
There was no dividend received for investment in
Huarong Int Fin during the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
Nil).

income

OUTLOOK

In 2018, the Group will continue to expand its business varieties
and be innovative to business models by actively promoting
businesses such as internet finance business, licensed financial
business, and merger and acquisitions to provide enterprises with
comprehensive financial services.

Fully leveraging the advantages of the "“CAIJIA” brand and
comprehensive financial services, the Group is able to lay solid
foundation in Hong Kong, and at the same time, to serve the
Greater China. In the meantime, the Group will coincide with the
development strategy of the state, “One-Belt-One-Road
Initiative”, and coincide with the construction of Guangdong,
Hong Kong, and Macau Greater Bay Area to strengthen the
integration of internal resources, seek and explore value-based
enterprises with great strength and excellent quality in such
industries, keep constant synergetic development, and strengthen
international business.
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LETTER FROM THE BOARD
BEFERMF

While expanding its business, the Group will continue to
strengthen its corporate governance and risk prevention and
control mechanisms to improve the overall system management
and achieve the rapid and steady growth and development of the
Group.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The operation of P2P financing platform and other loan facilitation
services business and the money lending business are two of the
principal activities of the Group and they expose to a number of
risks and uncertainties including exchange rate risk, policy risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. Details of the aforesaid principal risks
and the management thereof are set in note 33 “Financial Risk
Management Objectives and Policies” to the consolidated
financial statements.

Besides, the slowdown of China's economic growth and
tightening financial regulations may adversely affect the operation
of the P2P financing platform and other loan facilitation services
business and the money lending and provision of credit business.
The volatile and unpredictable stock market in Hong Kong also
raises uncertainty on the Group's returns from the securities
investment business.

The Board believes that maintaining and enhancing the “CAIJIA”
brand is critical to maintaining its competitive advantage. The
ability to maintain its brand reputation depends on a number of
factors including but not limited to borrowers’ and lenders’
satisfaction with the P2P platform’s products, lawsuits, web
server's stability and web interface quality, timely repayments by
the borrowers and the growth rate of the macro-economy, all of
which are beyond the Group’s control.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had recorded net current
assets of approximately HK$1,244,731,000 (31 December 2016:
HK$1,176,246,000); and cash and bank balances of approximately
HK$218,956,000 (31 December 2016: HK$348,357,000). The
Group did not enter into financial instruments for hedging
purpose.
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Capital Structure

There was no change to the authorised and issued share capital
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2017. As at 31
December 2017, the total number of issued shares of the
Company was 3,870,102,650 with par value of HK$0.001 each
(31 December 2016: 3,870,102,650 shares with par value of
HK$0.001 each).

Significant Investment, Acquisition and Disposals
Save as disclosed above, there was no significant investment,
acquisition and disposals that should be notified to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

The performance and prospect of the significant investments of
the Group for the current year under review were discussed
under the sections of “Securities Investments Business"” above.

Segment Information

Details of segment information of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017 are set out in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 40 employees which
were mainly stationed in Hong Kong and the PRC. In-house
training programs were provided for its employees to enhance
their skills and job knowledge. The management of the Company
would continue to foster close co-operation among the
employees.

The remuneration policies of the Company aim at ensuring that
remuneration levels are appropriate and in line with the
Company's target, mission and business performance. To do so,
the Company considers various relevant factors such as the
remuneration levels of its market competitors, market practices,
job duties, responsibilities and scope, financial and non-financial
performance, as well as the suitability of performance-based
remuneration arrangements

Details of Charges on Assets

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not pledge any assets to
banks or other financial institutions nor did the Group have any
corporate guarantee given to any entity (31 December 2016: Nil).
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LETTER FROM THE BOARD
BEFERMF

Future Plans for Material Investment or Capital Assets
It is the Group's corporate mission to continue to explore ways
to improve its financial performance, to diversify its operations
into new and more profitable businesses and to broaden the
sources of revenue within acceptable risk level. Hence, the
Company does not rule out the possibility of investing in or
changing to other profitable business as long as it is in the
interest of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. Also,
as part of its routine exercise, the Company reviews the
performance of its existing investment portfolio and evaluates the
investment potentials of other investment opportunities available
to the Company from time to time. Subject to the results of such
reviews, the Company may make suitable investment decisions
according to the then circumstance and information available
which may involve the disposal of the whole or part of its
existing investment portfolio and/or change of the asset
allocation of its investment portfolio and/or expanding its
investment portfolio with a view of realising and/or optimising
the expected return and minimising the risks. Meanwhile, the
Company does not preclude the possibility that the Company
may implement debt and/or equity fund raising plan(s) to satisfy
the financing needs arising out of any business development of
the Group as well as to improve its financial position in the event
that suitable fund raising opportunities arise.

As at the date of this report, the Company had not entered into
any agreement, arrangement, understanding, intention or
negotiation that should be disclosed pursuant to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) and the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFQ").

Treasure Policy

The Group has adopted a treasury policy on 24 May 2011 in
relation to the Group's investments in securities of other listed
companies on the Stock Exchange. The objective of the policy is
to enable the Group to control and govern the possible future
securities investments (if any, which may or may not occur).
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Working Capital and Gearing Ratio

As the Group had a net cash position as at 31 December 2017
and as at 31 December 2016 with no borrowing, the gearing
ratios were not applicable.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Business transactions of the Group are mainly denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The Group has not
implemented any foreign currency hedging policy at the moment.
However, in the view of the fluctuation of Renminbi in recent
years, continuous monitoring on the foreign exchange exposure is
carried out and the management will consider hedging the
foreign exchange exposure if it has material impact on the
Group.

Capital Commitment

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided for in its consolidated financial
statements of approximately HK$20,761,000 (31 December 2016:
Nil).

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (31 December 2016: Nil).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year.

DIVIDENDS
The Directors did not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the Year (2016: Nil).

APPRECIATION

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to our Shareholders, customers, suppliers and business
partners for their unremitting support. Also, | would like to thank
the management and staff for their contributions.

On behalf of the Board

Asia Pacific Silk Road Investment Company Limited
GUO Jintong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENENREEERRFE

EXECUTIVES DIRECTORS
Mr. Guo Jintong (“Mr. Guo”), aged 38, was appointed as
executive Director and the Chairman on 2 February 2018.

Mr. Guo graduated from Henan Polytechnic University in 2002
with a bachelor’'s degree in civil engineering, Tianjin University in
2005 with a master's degree in geotechnical engineering and
Tianjin University in 2008 with a doctoral degree. Mr. Guo has
over 8 years of experience in securities and financial sectors.

Mr. Li Jiuhua (“Mr. Li"), aged 54, was appointed as executive
Director on 7 September 2017 and appointed as the chief
executive officer of the Company (the “Chief Executive Officer”)
on 6 October 2017. He was further appointed as a member of
the remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) on 2 February 2018.

Mr. Li graduated from Xiamen University with a bachelor degree
in Finance in 2003 and obtained a master of business
administrative from the Jiangxi University of Finance and
Economics in the PRC in 2011. He has over 34 vyears of
experience in the securities and finance industries.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Gao Zhenyun (“Ms. Gao"), aged 37, was appointed as a non-
executive Director on 2 February 2018. She served as an
executive Director and the vice chairlady of the Company from 7
September 2017 to 1 February 2018. She was a member of the
Remuneration Committee from 6 October 2017 to 1 February
2018.

Ms. Gao is currently the assistant chief executive officer of China
Huarong International Holdings Limited, a subsidiary of China
Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd. (stock code: 2799), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Gao served as an executive director, chairman and chief
executive officer of Loudong General Nice Resources (China)
Holdings Limited (now known as Silk Road Logistics Holdings
Limited) (stock code: 988), a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, from 7 June 2017 to 6 September 2017.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Gao graduated from Peking University in the PRC with a
bachelor's degree in Germanistic in 2003 and obtained a master
of science degree in finance from Leeds Metropolitan University
in the United Kingdom in 2004. She has also obtained the
Securities Qualification Certificate, Fund Qualification Certificate
and Futures Qualification Certificate in China. She has over 13
years of experience in the securities and finance industries.

Mr. Yao Luo (“Mr. Yao”), aged 35, was appointed as a non-
executive Director on 7 September 2017.

Mr. Yao is currently the assistant chief executive officer of China
Huarong International Holdings Limited, a subsidiary of China
Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd. (stock code: 2799), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Yao graduated from Peking University in the PRC with a
bachelor degree in Arts in 2004 and graduated from Beijing
Foreign Studies University in the PRC with a master degree in
Arts in 2006 and obtained a master of Arts from the University
of Cambridge in the United Kingdom in 2011. He has over 11
years of experience in the securities and finance industries.

Ms. Yu Yang (“Ms. Yu"”), aged 34, was appointed as a non-
executive Director on 6 October 2017. She served as the chief
executive officer of the Group from 20 January 2016 to 6
October 2017.

Ms. Yu previously served as the managing director of Greater
China at Eternal Capital, a family fund, and was responsible for
the overall operation, management and supervision of the
investment business of the company in China, as well as listing
projects covering real estate, finance, agriculture, husbandry and
high-tech industries. She also worked in Sino Group, which is
one of the top four real estate developers in Hong Kong. She
graduated from the University of Cambridge, the United Kingdom
and holds a master’s degree in management.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEMRAEEENE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Chun Hung (“Mr. Wong"), aged 45, joined the Group
since 22 April 2010. He is also the chairman of the audit
committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”), the
nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) and the Remuneration Committee. He graduated
from Hong Kong Baptist University with an honors degree in
accounting in 1995. He is an associate of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has over 10 years’
experience in accounting, auditing and consulting. Mr. Wong has
been appointed as independent non-executive director of China
Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited (formerly known as Telefield
International (Holdings) Limited) (stock code: 1143), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, since 4
November 2015, and has been appointed as the independent
non-executive director of Landing International Development
Limited (stock code: 582), a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange since 26 September 2017.

Mr. Zheng Zhen (“Mr. Zheng"), aged 41, joined the Group since
10 May 2013, is a member of the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee. He
graduated from Southwestern University of Finance and
Economics, majoring in Accounting. Mr. Zheng possesses of over
10 years experiences in accounting and finance in various
industries. Currently, he is the financial controller of Zuoquan
Xinrui Metallurgy & Mine Co. Limited which is indirectly owned
as to 22.8% by Abterra Limited, a listed company in Singapore.

Mr. To Langa Samuelson (“Mr. To"”), aged 33, joined the Group
since 4 March 2015, is a member of the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Mr. To
is a solicitor practicing in Hong Kong and a member of The Law
Society of Hong Kong. He obtained his Bachelor Degree in Laws
and the Postgraduate Certificate in Laws (PCLL) from the
University of Hong Kong. Mr. To has extensive experience in law
in Hong Kong, particularly in civil and insurance-related matters.
Mr. To is currently the consultant of L&L Lawyers.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EFLRAEEEME

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER THER

Mr. Li Jiuhua (“Mr. Li"), an executive Director, also acts as the ZFNELRE([FTRE|)ABRITESHFITHRER -
Chief Executive Officer. The biographical details of Mr. Li are set ZFTHE4AZERECD R EXHE -

out above.

Saved as disclosed herein, there is no other relationship between BZAEHAFEEEIN  SEShSREEE 2 M

each of the Directors and senior management as required to be WEEMERE FHHANBEZBRE -
disclosed under the Listing Rules.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBERHE

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS Bi Rk
The following is a summary of the audited consolidated results of U TAXRNEBR T HBFE 2 EBZEEE
the Group for the respective years as hereunder stated. EHLE o

For the year ended 31 December
BEt-A=t-HLEE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E-tF ZEZE-X¥ -1 E-ONE —T-=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET THET FHET THET

Revenue U % 273,347 555,386 102,490 65,165 29,693
Profit/(loss) attributable /N7 ¥ =N

to the owners wmF(E18)

of the Company 82,274 321,907 (148,282) (26,008) 75,597
Dividends g = - - - -
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION B 3% AR R R &

The following is a summary of the audited consolidated WRTARANEERTIHBER 2 KEZEEY
statement of financial position of the Group as at the respective SR MEBE -
dates as hereunder stated.

As at 31 December
R+=-A=+-—H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E-tF5 ZE-R " 2R ZE-@OmNFg ZT—=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FET TET FAET FET

Plant and equipment I 5 R iR 1,748 2,908 17,802 527 1,394
Goodwill S 2,182,663 2,182,663 2,182,663 239,000 306,019
Intangible assets BEEE = - 1,194 1,194 -
Deposits and prepayments & & KB HE

(non-current portions) (GEmENE7) 19,689 865 - 221 242
Available-for-sale investments A & & 731,435 718,465 1,168,760 797,503 264,165
Loan and interest receivables J& U & 3 I Fl & 1,117,669 878,079 555,180 391,584 222,430
Other current assets HipReEE 252,238 358,679 254,652 91,923 265,224
Current liabilities mBAE (125,176) (60,512) (44,595) (9,644) (67,547)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEAR (34) (78) (304) - -
Representing: g
Share capital f& 7R 3,870 3,870 2,782 2,782 2,782
Reserves G 4,152,763 4,059,704 4,124,956 1,509,384 988,984
Non-controlling interests IR E S 23,599 17,495 7,614 142 161
Shareholders' equity B B = 4,180,232 4,081,069 4,135,352 1,512,308 991,927
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is committed to uphold a high standard of corporate
governance practices and business ethics in the belief that they
are essential for maintaining and promoting investors’ confidence
and maximising Shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its
corporate governance practices from time to time in order to
meet the rising expectations of Shareholders and comply with
increasingly stringent regulatory requirements (both locally and
internationally), and to fulfill its commitment to excellence in
corporate governance.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the code provisions (“Code
Provision(s)”) set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules during
the year and as at the date of this report. The principles as set
out in the Code Provisions have been applied in the Company’s
corporate governance structure.

THE BOARD

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises of two
executive Directors, three non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. Formal letters of
appointment for Directors setting out the key terms and
conditions of their appointment were subsequently executed by
all Directors. The non-executive Directors are appointed for a
term of 2 years and the independent non-executive Directors are
appointed for a term of 1 year but all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND
CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The key responsibility of the Board is overseeing the business
and how the management serves the interests of the
Shareholders and other stakeholders. The Board assumes
responsibility for leadership and control of the Company and is
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the
Company by directing and supervising its affairs. The Directors,
individually and collectively, must act in good faith in the best
interests of the Company and its Shareholders, and ensure good
corporate governance and compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements.

The roles of the Board include reviewing and guiding corporate
strategies and policies, monitoring financial and operating
performance and setting appropriate risk management policies.
All Directors should take decisions objectively in the interests of
the Company. To achieve this, the Board has adopted corporate
governance principles aimed at ensuring that the Board is
independent and fully informed on the key strategic issues facing
the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CEERME

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters relating
to policy matters, strategies and budgets, risk management and
internal control, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
Directors and other significant operational matters of the
Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of
the Board, directing, and coordinating the daily operation of the
Company are delegated to the management.

THE COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board has established three board committees, being the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee (collectively the “Board Committees”) to
oversee different areas of the Company’'s affairs. All Board
Committees are provided with sufficient resources to perform
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice, at the Company’s expense.

Under the Bye-Laws of the Company, one-third of the Directors,
or if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest one-third, shall be subject to retirement by
rotation. They are required to retire from office at each annual
general meeting and their re-election is subject to a vote of the
Shareholders. Retiring Directors are eligible for re-election at the
annual general meeting at which they retire. Further, any Director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company but shall
be eligible for re-election at the meeting. Separate resolutions are
proposed for the election of each Director.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material relationships with each other. Such balanced Board
composition is formed to ensure strong independence exists
across the Board.

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in
pages 12 to 14 of this annual report, which demonstrates a
diversity of skills, expertise, experience and qualification.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
The Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are Mr.
Jintong and Mr. Li Jiuhua respectively.
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As at the date of this report, the composition of the Board and
the Board Committees are given below and their respective
responsibilities are discussed in this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

RABERY EFGREFTZESHEKET
T MEABBRE RSN ARE R

Board of Directors

Audit Nomination Remuneration
Committee Committee Committee

EREEE REZEE FHEES

BEEg
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. GUO Jintong (Chairman) LeBERE(EE)

Mr. LI Jiuhua (Chief Executive Officer) ZTNEFRE(TTIEIEE)

Non-Executive Directors FHITES
Ms. GAO Zhenyun BEEEX T
Mr. YAO Luo O %k &
Ms. YU Yang RGBT L

Independent Non-executive Directors B HITESE

Mr. WONG Chun Hung HIEMLAE
Mr. ZHENG Zhen B 48 5t A&
Mr. TO Langa Samuelson Mt BA hn 5t A

An updated list of the Directors, identifying their roles and
functions at the Company, is available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules, the Board and the Audit Committee should include at least
three independent non-executive Directors and members
respectively. In compliance with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules,
the Board should have at least one-third in number of its
members comprising independent non-executive Directors. At
least one of the independent non-executive Directors has
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise that complies with Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from all independent non-executive
Directors annual confirmations of their independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers such
Directors to be independent.

- - member
chairman chairman chairman
a3 B3 *FE
member member member
member member member
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CEERME

The number of Board meetings and general meetings held during
the year ended 31 December 2017 and the Directors’ respective
attendance record are summarised as follows:

HEC
&
(1

—tFt+=-A=

T—RIEFER

B
@Q%&k%ﬁ5£%&%§$ZMEE

Number of general
meetings attended
(2 in total)

Number of Board
meetings attended
(21 in total)

HERRAERE HEESESENH
(I:I/\Z/A) (l:l/\21/A)
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Guo Jintong (Chairman) (Note 1) e ERE(ERL)
(Bt at1) - -
Mr. Li Jiuhua (Chief Executive Officer) — 2 L2 5% & (77 48 %)
(Note 2) (Hat2) - 4/4
Mr. Huang Chuan Fu (Note 3) BEEALE (23 0/2 15/19
Mr. Liang Jian Hua (Note 4) REESLE (M F) 2/2 16/19
Ms. Jia Hui (Note 5) B Lt (K iEs) 0/2 2/19
Mr. Jiang Yi Ren (Note 6) B—1ESRE (W iE6) 2/2 19/19
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Ms. Gao Zhenyun (Note 7) BEELL(KiE7) - 4/4
Mr. Yao Luo (Note 8) w0 5 & (H aE8) - 3/4
Ms. Yu Yang (Note 9) 15+ (H71:£9) - 2/2
Mr. Bai Tianhui (Note 10) BXELLE (K77 10) - 4/4
Independent non-executive Directors BIYEHITESE
Mr. Wong Chun Hung = A 2/2 20/21
Mr. Zheng Zhen B0 48 o A4 2/2 18/21
Mr. To Langa Samuelson I BRI % A 2/2 21/21
1. Appointed as the executive Director and the Chairman on 2 February 2018. 1. REZE- N\F_AZHEZAARNTEERERE
2. Appointed as the executive Director with effect from 7 September 2017. 2. RZE—+tFNALBEZAEARATES - REBEEZR
Four Board meetings and no general meeting were held subsequent to his ERPTEFR SRTUAEFSSE  UHEET
appointment as the executive Director. EARE -

3. Resigned as the Chairman with effect from 7 September 2017. Relinquished 3. RIZE—tFNALEBEEER R_ZT—LFTAH
his directorship on 6 October 2017. During his appointment, nineteen Board N A 55?§§$H"ﬁ% REEARN  BRITTAREFE

meetings and two general meetings were held.

4. Relinquished his directorship on 6 October 2017. During his appointment,
nineteen Board meetings and two general meetings were held.

5. Relinquished her directorship on 6 October 2017. During her appointment,
nineteen Board meetings and two general meetings were held.
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6. Relinquished his directorship on 6 October 2017. During his appointment,
nineteen Board meetings and two general meetings were held.

7. Appointed as the executive Director and elected as the vice chairlady of the
Board with effect from 7 September 2017. Re-designated as the non-
executive Director, with effect from 2 February 2018. Four Board meetings
and no general meeting were held subsequent to her appointment.

8. Appointed as the non-executive Director with effect from 7 September 2017.
Four Board meetings and no general meeting were held subsequent to his
appointment.

9. Appointed as the non-executive Director with effect from 6 October 2017.
Two Board meetings and no general meeting were held subsequent to her
appointment.

10. Appointed as the non-executive Director and the Chairman with effect from
7 September 2017. Relinquished all his positions held in the Company on 2
February 2018. During his appointment, Four Board meetings and no
general meeting were held.

Regular Board meetings are convened and held by the Company,
and the Directors are given adequate notice to attend such
regular Board meetings or other Board meetings. The Directors
are also provided in a timely manner with appropriate information
in such form and of such quality as will enable them to make an
informed decision and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities as Directors. Minutes of regular Board meetings,
other Board meetings or other committees meetings are
recorded in sufficient details. Draft and final versions of minutes
are circulated to all Directors for comments and records
respectively, within a reasonable time after the Board meetings
or committee meetings are held. Final versions of minutes are
kept by the company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) and are open for inspection at any reasonable time
on reasonable notice by any Director.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

For having a diversified Board which is regarded as an essential
element in the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development, in August 2013, the Board adopted a
Board Diversity Policy with principles as summarised below.
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The Nomination Committee reviews and assesses the
composition of the Board and makes recommendations to the
Board on appointment of new Directors. The Nomination
Committee also oversees the conduct of the annual review of the
effectiveness of the Board. In reviewing and assessing the
composition of the Board, the Nomination Committee will
consider the benefits of all aspects of diversity in order to
maintain an appropriate range and balance of talents, skills,
experience and background on the Board. In recommending
candidates for appointment to the Board, the Nomination
Committee will consider candidates on merit against objective
criteria and with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service etc.

DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate
respect of the legal action against the Directors and the
Company Secretary.

insurance cover in

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

Each newly appointed Director is provided with comprehensive
induction to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of the
operations and businesses of the Group as well as his/her
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements.

During the year, all Directors (except Mr. Guo Jintong who was
appointed as an executive Director on 2 February 2018) were
provided with regular updates on the Group's business and
operation and information which covered topics including but not
limited to the CG Code, the disclosure and compliance of inside
information, updates and changes in relation to legislative and
regulatory requirements in which the Group conducts its
business for their study and reference. During the vyear, all
Directors have participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
All Directors, including the former directors received regular
briefings and updates from the Company Secretary on the
Group’s business, operations and corporate governance matters,
studied publications, books and other reading materials or
attended seminars or workshops delivered by professionals,
which are relevant to their duties and responsibilities.
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ARBABRFEEFTRHEZMAHFER - A
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EPRAEEEEERE T ETRESER
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the terms contained in the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the Company’s
code of conduct for securities transactions (the “Model Code").
All Directors, upon specific enquiry, have confirmed that they
have complied with the Model Code during the year ended 31
December 2017.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Remuneration Committee

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee
comprises of an executive Director, Mr. Li Jiuvhua and three
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Wong Chun Hung
(Chairman), Mr. Zheng Zhen and Mr. To Langa Samuelson.

The role and function of the Remuneration Committee are:

(@) to make recommendations to the Board on the Company'’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on
such remuneration;

(b)  to have the delegated responsibility to determine the specific
remuneration packages of all executive Directors and senior
management (i.e. the model described in the code
provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code), including benefits in
kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including
any compensation payable for loss or termination of their
office or appointment, and make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration of non-executive Directors. The
Remuneration Committee should consider factors such as
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the Directors, employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance-
based remuneration;

(c)  to review and approve performance-based remuneration by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the
Board from time to time;
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(d) to review and approve the compensation payable to
executive Directors and senior management in connection
with any loss or termination of their office or appointment
to ensure that such compensation is determined in
accordance with relevant contractual terms and that such
compensation is otherwise fair and not excessive for the
Company;

(e)  to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to
ensure that such arrangements are determined in
accordance with relevant contractual terms and that any
compensation payment is otherwise reasonable and
appropriate; and

(f)  to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration.

Remuneration Committee meetings were held during the year
ended 31 December 2017 and the Remuneration Committee

R R BB SR LR EREN
WITEERSMERE 2HE  UERA
MAEDRABANGREE  BHAR
AMETBAFRLIFED

R RNEHRATETAMBRIERES
ZIRBMEL S - AREBLHIIIEMA
BAENKEREE  BEEMMEREREM
TEHBAERRE

BMREFFHTABEALEZ2EBEAR
FZFM -

BE_Z—tFT_A=+—HILFERETZ
FHEZBE @R RS FHERBEERB ZHFEL

members’ respective attendance records are summarised as SRt a0 T
follows:
Number of
Remuneration Committee
meetings attended
(3 in total)
HEFHEES
BB XRB(EH3KX)
Mr. WONG Chun Hung (Chairman) HIEMEE(FE) 3/3
Mr. HUANG Chuan Fu (Note 1) mEERBEEN ) 2/2
Mr. ZHENG Zhen EpAE A 2/3
Mr. TO Langa Samuelson T BA I A 3/3
Ms. GAO Zhenyun (Note 2) SEELE(MiF2) 1/1
Mr. LI Jinhua (Note 3) FRESEMNEI) -
Note 1  Ceased to be a member on 6 October 2017. Two meetings were held  Fif a1 RZZE—tFTARNBTBEEKE - REHFE
prior to his resignation. Al ERITMAE R
Note 2  Appointed as a member on 6 October 2017 and relinquished her M 52 RZE—+tF+ABEZEAEKE  RZZT—N
membership on 2 February 2018. One meeting was held during her F_AHBMEKRERS - REER - BT K
appointment. e
Note 3  Appointed as a member on 2 February 2018. M 73 RZZE—N\E_A-HEZTAKE -
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The remuneration payable to the Directors and senior
management is determined by reference to their experiences and
duties with the Company and the estimated time spent by them
on the Company’'s matters. During the year, 3 meetings were
held to (a) review the Company's policy on remuneration of the
Group; (b) review the performance and recommended the
remuneration of the Directors and senior management to the
Board; and (c) recommend the remuneration of newly appointed
Directors and senior management to the Board.

Details of the Directors’ and the chief executive's remuneration
are set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

Nomination Committee

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee
comprises of three independent non-executive Directors, Mr.
Wong Chun Hung (Chairman), Mr. Zheng Zhen and Mr. To Langa
Samuelson.

The role and function of the Nomination Committee are:

(@)  to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and length of service) of the
Board at least annually; and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to implement the
Company's corporate strategy;

(b)  to consider the skills mix needed in respect of the Directors
and make recommendations to the Board;

(c)  to identify and nominate candidates to fill casual vacancies
of the Directors for the Board's approval. Academic and
professional qualifications, business experience, expertise
and knowledge as well as other requirements under the
Listing Rules will be assessed to determine if the
nomination is suitable;

(d) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors and review the independent non-executive
Directors’ annual confirmations on their independence; and
make disclosure of its review results in the Corporate
Governance Report;

(e)  to regularly review the time required from a Director to
perform his responsibilities;
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(f)  to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of the
Directors and succession planning for the Directors in
particular the chairman of the Board and the chief
executive;

(g) to do any such things to enable the Nomination Committee
to discharge its powers and functions conferred on it by the
Board; and

(h)  to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that
may from time to time be prescribed by the Board or
contained in the Company's constitution or imposed by
legislation.

During the year, 2 meetings were held by the Nomination
Committee to, among other things, (a) review the structure, size
and composition of the Board, (b) make recommendation for
appointment of the Directors, (c) assess the independence of
each of the independent non-executive Directors, and (d) review
the Board Diversity Policy to ensure its effectiveness and
considered the Group achieved the policy since its adoption. The
following table shows the attendance of the Nomination
Committee members at the Nomination Committee meetings
held during the year:

() HEEREFZAEEEREFTEETE (L
HEESEIRABERTBRAB)ZER
EHRAEFGROHEBEES:

(9 ETEAERLZZESHEETHEESS
BYzBORDEZER R

(h ETEFEIHHHAARAERHM L
EBIME N EMRE - B RBRA -

h%iﬁaﬁiwﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁlﬂﬁ¢@%)
AMMEFSRE ABELKEAS - DFE
E%%%ﬁﬁ%k%*m%%%h #%ﬁ%
EZBIENRAOBRANEFTEXNE L TEBE
NERENEGE  URBAEEERMANKRDE
BERBER TRITERBZBEERERF
AHFEREZBEEHAZLH:

Number of

Nomination Committee
meetings attended

(2 in total)
HtEREZES

SR XRE(EH2K)

Mr. WONG Chun Hung (Chairman) FEBELE(EE) 2/2
Mr. ZHENG Zhen B 48 5t A& 2/2
Mr. TO Langa Samuelson BRI A 2/2
Audit Committee EREEE

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises of
three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Wong Chun Hung
(Chairman), Mr. Zheng Zhen and Mr. To Langa Samuelson.

BEAGRESAY EXZEEKEBERRE=428
VHERTEETHEBEELE(ERE) BEELER
BRI A -
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The number of Audit Committee meetings held during the year
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BE_T—tFT-_A=T—"HLEFERENTZ

ended 31 December 2017 and the Audit Committee members’ BRZEZECCHNBNEEXZZTESRKEZH

respective attendance records are summarised as follows: s T -

Number of

Audit Committee
meetings attended
(2 in total)
HEEREZEES
SRRB(EH2R)

Mr. WONG Chun Hung (Chairman) EHEERE(EE) 2/2

Mr. ZHENG Zhen Ba kAt 2/2

Mr. TO Langa Samuelson BRI A 2/2

The role and function of the Audit Committee are: ERZEesACRBREA:

Relationship with the Company’s auditors 1 K /,157 B 2ADZ B5 1R

(a) to be primarily responsible for making recommendation to  (a) ZEEANEM  BEKERIINEZEEM
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal ﬁ%%?hﬁ?&%k% - E AL INEE Az EAm
of the external auditor and to approve the remuneration and 2 e REBGHR - ARERA @z EE
terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any BHASERZME
questions of resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

(b) to review and monitor the external auditors’ independence  (b) 2 iR iE M8 %E Bl 4i & Ko Bx ¥ M IS 4% BRI 2 08
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in THERBEEEUAREZEFR KR - BZ
accordance with applicable standard. The Audit Committee ZE RN EZMBASL1THEINE Z Z A
should discuss with the external auditor before the audit SRBERERRET s MEREE W
commences, the nature and scope of the audit and 575’\ RIZBMIT2 B Z B TIERETH
reporting obligations, and ensure co-ordination where more F
than one audit firm is involved;

(c) to develop and implement policy on the engagement of an () Bt B8 NS A2 BUAM 4R 1 3F 2% RS I 7] &2
external auditor to supply non-audit services. For this MITEBBR - EMmE  INEZE
purpose, external auditor shall include any entity that is MEEZ AT RES  HEXRER
under common control, ownership or management with the ZIEMER H—BEEERANBEE=F4H
audit firm or any entity that a reasonable and informed third TEMBHEBEMNMEHEHEERERZZ
party having knowledge of all relevant information would FMTR2EBEREE E—Bo2FE W
reasonably conclude as part of the audit firm nationally or TR -EZZECTRMNESSER  &F5
internationally. The Audit Committee should report to the HR Prﬁ'ﬁ%ﬁif?@]if’ﬁﬂjﬂﬂ§21ﬂ7$ﬁ
Board, identifying any matters in respect of which it jﬁ?ﬁ: IR B R
considers that action or improvement is needed and making
recommendations as to the steps to be taken; and

(d) to act as the key representative body for overseeing the  (d)  #&{E &5 22 /KX &) 82 51 B A% BURD 2 R AR &Y

Company's relations with the external auditor.
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Review of financial information of the Company

(e)

28

to monitor integrity of financial statements of the Company
and the Company’s annual report and accounts, interim
report and, if preparation for publication of quarterly
reports, and to review significant financial reporting
judgements contained in them. In this regard, in reviewing
the Company’s annual report and accounts, interim report
and if prepared for publication, quarterly reports before
submission to the Board, the Audit Committee should focus
particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(i) major judgemental areas;

(iii)  significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

(iv)  the going concern assumption and any qualifications;
(v)  compliance with accounting standards; and

legal

(vij  compliance with the Listing Rules and
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

as regards to (e) above:

(i) members of the Audit Committee must liaise with the
Board, the Company's senior management and the
person appointed as the Company’'s qualified
accountant and the Audit Committee must meet, at
least twice a vyear, with the Company's external
auditors; and

(i) the Audit Committee should consider any significant
or unusual items that are, or may need to be,
reflected in such reports and accounts and must give
due consideration to any matters that have been
raised by the Company's staff responsible for the
accounting and financial reporting function,
compliance officer or external auditors;
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Oversight of the Group’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems

(g)

(m)

to review the Group's financial controls, and unless expressly
addressed by a separate board risk committee, or by the
Board itself, to review the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control systems
with the management to ensure that management has
performed its duty to have effective systems. This discussion
should include the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting function;

to consider major investigation findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or
on its own initiative and management’s response to these
findings;

where an internal audit function exists, to ensure
coordination between the internal and external auditors, and
to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately
resourced and has appropriate standing within the Group,
and to review and monitor its effectiveness;

to review the Group's financial and accounting policies and
practices;

to review the external auditor's management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management in
respect of the accounting records, financial accounts or
systems of control and management’s response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor's management letter;

to report to the Board on the matters set out in this terms
of reference;

to review the Company's arrangements for its employees
can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters. The Audit Committee shall ensure that proper
arrangements are in place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-up
action; and

to consider other topics, as defined by the Board.

(h)

(n)

BXRGBIRERMRAE -2
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Corporate Governance Functions

()  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board,

(N to review and monitor

professional

management;

the training and continuous
development of the Directors and senior

(s)  to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices

on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

review and monitor the code of conduct and
applicable to employees and the

(t)  to develop,
compliance manual
Directors; and

(u)  to review the Company’'s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the vyear, the Audit Committee has reviewed the half-
yearly and annual financial results and reports as well as the
effectiveness of the Company's risk management and internal
control systems and internal audit function. The Audit Committee
also met the external auditor and monitored the re-appointment
of external auditor. Besides, the Audit Committee performed the
corporate governance duties as delegated by the Board as
discussed above.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee during the year.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the total remuneration
paid to Zenith CPA Limited was HK$2,1700,000 for audit services
and non-audit services provided for the Company. Such total
remuneration included HK$1,650,000 for audit fee, which was
approved by the Board, HK$350,000 for review of interim results
and HK$100,000 for the review of indebtedness statement.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE GROUP’S
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of financial statements of the Group which are
prepared in accordance with the relevant statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards in force, and are published in
a timely manner. The Directors are responsible for selecting and
applying on a consistent basis suitable accounting policies and
ensuring timely adoption of Hong Kong Accounting Standards and
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

The Board understands the importance of presenting a clear and
comprehensive assessment of the Group’s overall performance,
financial positions as well as prospects in a timely manner; and
the Board is pleased to report that, so far, the annual and interim
results of the Group are announced within the three months and
two months limit respectively after the end of the relevant
periods.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
The Board acknowledges its responsibility in (i) maintaining the
risk management and internal control system for the Group to
safeguard the investments of the Shareholders and assets of the
Group at all times; and (ii) evaluating the effectiveness of such
system. The system of internal control aims to help achieving the
Group's business objectives, safeguarding assets and maintaining
proper accounting records for provision of reliable financial
information. However, the design of the system is to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement in the financial statements or loss of assets and to
manage, rather than eliminate, the risks of failure when business
objectives are being sought.

Main Features
Described below are the main features of the Group’s risk
management and internal control framework:

Control Environment

° The Directors and senior management are committed to
developing and maintaining high professional and ethical
standards and the Group provides sufficient training to
accounting and financial personnel to keep pace with the
growth and/or complexity of the business.
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Risk Assessment
° Mechanisms are in place to identify and assess the risks of
fraud that affect achievement of the Group's objectives.

o Any risk identified should be reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board and be investigated. Immediate
action should be taken to mitigate the risk.

Information and Communication

° Administrative information system provides necessary
information to an appropriate employee of the Group at the
necessary level of detail on a timely basis.

° Channels are established for employees of the Group to
communicate suspected improprieties upstream through

other than a direct supervisor.

Control Activities

° Policies and procedures are laid down for key business
processes for ensuring management directives are carried
out.

° Control activities include segregation of duties, authorization,
physical count, access control, documentation and records,
etc.

Monitoring

° Ongoing assessment of control systems’ performance is
carried out.

° Professional third party is engaged to assess and comment

on the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems.

Identifying, Evaluating and Managing Significant Risks
The management has regular meetings with officers from
different operation divisions to identify significant risks and to
discuss the likelihood of occurrence, the impact of such risks and
risk mitigation strategic. The management then reports to the
Audit Committee and the Board with recommendations and
mitigation measures. The Board is responsible for determining
the risk mitigating strategy.

& 2 A A

. AEBREEENTHAETEHIENXE
E R RF R B 2 el o

o $§I@W§%§E’ EEQERME
FZRBAETHESE - I 7 B ERETTB)
R e o

ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ

s TTHEMAGRAAKEEEREBDEREMH
WQWQ%EZ%W§M°

e AKEHER “ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%i?%%%i%
BRBERIAETRZIRE

B
e AFAEERBIFEXBHENEF
BRESFIET -

FERE

e EREDOEIMBME.
B RS

B -BEH

* B
P

$E@AT%$MW 2 B 2 RRE ©

e AEBEEERE=ZFEEZALFTEARE
E&W%%%ﬂﬁﬁﬁi%&ﬁﬁ'ﬁ%
HER

ﬁi‘#ﬁ&%ﬁiﬁﬂ@

EEETHESEGHMABRITE R Uik

EEXRER THdwmERERZAENE 8

&W@Z%pogﬁgﬁéﬁgﬁééﬁﬁﬁ

FEEREZ LK
8RR 2 SRR e

Hitc EFERRBETER

32 Asia Pacific Silk Road Investment Company Limited 2017 Annual Report



Internal Audit

The Group has outsourced the internal audit function by engaging
a professional third party to assess and comment on the
adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems during the vyear. There was no significant
deficiencies in risk management and internal controls reported by
such professional third party.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

In relation to the handling and dissemination of inside information
under the SFO, the Group has established the policy of
disclosure of inside information as an integrated part of its risk
management and internal control policy to provide guidance for
reporting and disclosure of inside information. Such policy,
together with the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information” issued by Securities and Futures Commission, are
also distributed across all relevant divisions and employees who
are likely to be in possession of inside information. Under such
policy, the Directors or management shall report any potential
inside information to the Board as soon as possible, so that the
Board can determine whether the matter or its development is
inside information and make disclosure whenever necessary.

Review of Effectiveness

The Audit Committee also reviews internal control issues
identified by external auditor, regulatory authorities, the
management and the outsourced internal audit function and
evaluates the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems at least annually. The
Audit Committee in turn reports any material issues to the
Board.

The Board has conducted review on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2017, covering all material controls in
the financial, operational and compliance controls. The review
also considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programs and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions. The
Board considers the risk management and internal control system
effective and adequate. The Board confirms that the Group has
complied with the Code Provisions on risk management and
internal control as set out in the CG Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2017.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

On 14 September 2017, Ms. Zhang Tan Fung (“Ms. Zhang"), who
was a full time employee of the Company, has ceased to be the
Company Secretary and following her cessation, Mr. Young Ho
Kee Bernard (“Mr. Young”) who is an assistant vice president of
SW Corporate Services Group Limited, an external corporate
service provider company in Hong Kong, became the sole
Company Secretary. Ms. Liu Jia (“Ms. Liu"”), the board secretary,
became the key contact in the Company for Mr. Young in
relation to any corporate secretarial matters of the Company.

According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Young has
confirmed that he has taken no less than 15 hours of
professional training to update his skills and knowledge during
the reporting period.

On 29 March 2018, Mr. Young resigned as the Company
Secretary and following his resignation, Ms. Ko Nga Kit (“Ms.
Ko"), who is a vice president of SW Corporate Services Group
Limited, an external service provider, has been appointed by the
Board as the Company Secretary with effect from 29 March
2018. Ms. Ko's primary contact person in the Company in
relation to any corporate secretarial matters of the Company is
still Ms. Liu, the Board Secretary.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board maintains an on-going dialogue with the Shareholders
through general meetings and Shareholders are encouraged to
participate.

Shareholders’ Communication Policy

On 30 March 2012, the Board adopted a Shareholders’
Communication Policy to comply with the updated Listing Rules
and to reflect mostly the current communication practices of the
Company with its Shareholders. Such policy aims to (i) promote
effective communication with Shareholders and other
stakeholders; (ii) encourage Shareholders to engage actively with
the Company; and (iii) enable Shareholders to exercise their rights
as Shareholders effectively. However, the Board will review the
Shareholders’ Communication Policy on a regular basis to ensure
its effectiveness and compliance with the prevailing regulatory
and other requirements.
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The Company established a range of communication channels to
provide its Shareholders and stakeholders with balanced and
understandable information about the Company. These include
annual general meeting, annual report, interim report, various
notices, announcements and circulars. The annual general
meeting and other general meetings of the Company are primary
forum for communication between the Company and its
Shareholders. The Company shall provide Shareholders with
relevant information on the resolution(s) proposed at a general
meeting in a timely manner in accordance with the Listing Rules.
The information provided shall be reasonably necessary to enable
Shareholders to make an informed decision on the proposed
resolution(s).

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene a Special
General Meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, a special
general meeting shall be convened by the members of the
Company holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth (10%) of such of the paid-up capital of the
company as at the date of the deposit carries the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company. The requisitionists must
submit their requisition in writing, in which it must state the
objects of the meeting, and be duly signed by the requisitionists,
mailed and deposited at 35/F, Bank of China Tower, 1 Garden
Road, Hong Kong (attention of the Company Secretary).

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting for
a day not more than 28 days after the date on which the notice
convening the meeting is given, the requisitionists, or any of
them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may themselves convene a meeting, but any
meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3
months from the said date. Any reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionists by reason of the failure of the Directors duly to
convene a meeting shall be repaid to the requisitionists by the
Company.
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Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General
Meetings by Shareholders

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, proposals at
Shareholders’ meetings can be put forward by the members of
the Company holding at the date of the submission of the
proposals not less than one-twentieth (5%) of such of the paid-
up capital of the Company as at the date of the submission
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company;
or not less than 100 Shareholders.

The submission of the proposals must be made within 3
business days after a notice of the Shareholders’ meeting have
been served to all registered Shareholders by the Board. The
proposals must be written and must state the objects of the
proposals, and must be signed by the proposers, and mailed and
deposited at 35/F, Bank of China Tower, 1 Garden Road, Hong
Kong, (attention of the Company Secretary); and may consist of
several documents in like form, each signed by one or more
proposers.

The proposals will be verified with the Company’s share registrar
and upon its confirmation that the proposals are proper and in
order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to update the
resolutions by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the
statutory requirements to all registered Shareholders, provided
that the proposers have deposited a sum of money reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses involved in publishing
supplementary circular and updating related resolutions. On the
contrary, if the requisition has been verified as not in order, the
proposer will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, no
resolution will be updated as requested.

Procedures for Sending Enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company, for the
attention of the Company Secretary, by email:
pphlhk@pphl.com.hk, fax: (852) 2114 0292, or mail to 35/F, Bank
of China Tower, 1 Garden Road, Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company maintains a website at www.irasia.com/listco/hk/
asiapacificsilkroad, where information of the Company including
the list of Directors, announcements, circulars and reports
released to the Stock Exchange and other information are posted.
Information on the Company's website will be updated from time
to time.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
There was no amendment made to the constitutional documents
of the Company during the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors present their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange. The address of its registered office is Canon'’s
Court, 22 Victoria Street Hamilton, HM 12, Bermuda. The
principal place of business of the Company is 35/F, Bank of
China Tower, 1 Garden Road, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
through its subsidiaries, engaging in operation of P2P financing
platform and other loan facilitation services, money lending and
securities investment. The activities and the particulars of the
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The discussion and analysis of principal activities of the Group as
required by Schedule 5 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), including financial key
performance indicators, a fair review of the Company’s business,
a description of principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Company and future development in the Company’s business,
can be found in “Financial Results”, “Business Review”,
“Principal Risks and Uncertainties” and “Outlook” sections under
the “Letter from the Board” of this annual report.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS

(a) Employee
Employees are the most valuable assets of the Group. The
Group provides in-house training programs to enhance skills
and job knowledge of its employees. The Group also
reviews the performance of its employees from time to
time and rewards the recognised performance with
bonuses. In addition to remuneration, the Group provides
share option scheme as incentives and other employee
benefits including retirement benefits scheme and medical
insurance to its employees.
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(b) Customers
The principal customers of the Group are from operation of
P2P financing platform and other loan facilitation service
business, money lending business. The Group is committed
to offer full range services to its customers with critical and
professional attitude and maintains effective communication
with the customers in order to provide excellent services.

(c) Suppliers
The Group has good standing and long-term relationship
with its suppliers. The Group makes payments to the
suppliers promptly for better negotiation in price and
maintains good communication with the suppliers.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
POLICIES

It is the Company’s belief that improvements in environmental,
social and governance (“"ESG") matters will enhance the
long-term performance of the Company as well as the benefits of
the Company’'s primary stakeholders, which include the
Shareholders, customers, employees, suppliers and other
business partners. Taking environmental policy as an example,
the Group is committed to build up an environmental-friendly
working environment by promoting energy savings in the offices
and collecting waste papers for recycling. The Group will
continue to make efforts to minimise its operational impact on
the environment and the use of natural resources. An ESG report
will be published separately on the Company’s website to report
the Company's ESG policies and its compliance with the “comply
or explain” provisions set out in the ESG Reporting Guide
contained in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules for the year ended
31 December 2017. The said ESG report is expected to be
published on the Company's website no later than the end of
July 2018.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group, to the best of
our knowledge, has complied with the Money Lenders
Ordinance, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, the Listing
Rules, the SFO, the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and other
relevant laws and regulations.
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STRUCTURED CONTRACTS

Beijing Huiju Wealth Management Consultant
Company Limited* (A W EBHMEEEZAER25)
(“Beijing Huiju Management”)

The P2P online financing platform in the PRC is a platform
matching borrowers with private lenders for various financial
products through the internet and it is managed by Beijing Huiju
Management. The Group only participates in providing matching
services between lenders and borrowers and therefore does not
require a money lending license to conduct its business.
However, the Group is required to hold a valid internet content
provider (“ICP") license to run the P2P platform. The operation of
the P2P platform is a kind of value-added telecommunications
business in the PRC and the current PRC laws and regulations
place certain restrictions on foreign ownership of companies on
such business. As such, as at the completion of the P2P
Acquisition, Beijing Huiju Management, Beijing Huiju Financial
Consulting Co. Limited® (IR EEFBU BERER QR
(“Beijing Huiju Financial”), a foreign enterprise established in
the PRC with limited liability which is a 96% indirectly owned
subsidiary of the Company, and/or the registered shareholder of
Beijing Huiju Management (the “Registered Shareholder(s)"”) or
the Registered Shareholder’'s shareholders entered into the
Structured Contracts, which enable the financial results, the
entire economic benefits and risks of the businesses of Beijing
Huiju Management to flow onto Beijing Huiju Financial and
enable Beijing Huiju Financial to gain the controlling right of
Beijing Huiju Management. The ICP license is currently
possessed by Beijing Huiju Management which acts as an
operating company. In the event of default by borrowers, Beijing
Huiju Management will, on a best effort basis, identify
independent debt buyers through business referrals to acquire the
defaulted loans from the lenders on the P2P platform.

Before 21 July 2016, the Registered Shareholder was Beijing
KangDingAo Hospital Investment Management Company Limited*®
(bR ERRERIEEBEARADAF). Since 21 July 2016, the
Registered Shareholders have been changed to Mr. Guo Junfeng,
being the general manager of Beijing Huiju Financial (the
“Change of the Registered Shareholders”). Currently Beijing
Huiju Management is owned as to 99% by Mr. Guo Junfeng and
1% by Mr. Dong Zhitian.

For the vyear ended 31 December 2017, Beijing Huiju
Management recorded revenue and a net profit of approximately
RMB7,922,000 and RMB4,040,000 respectively (2016: revenue
and a net profit of approximately RMB41,278,000 and
RMB11,902,000 respectively).

# The English names of the Chinese entitles are translation of their Chinese
names and are included herein for identification purpose only.
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As at 31 December 2017, the total assets and net assets of
Beijing Huiju Management were approximately RMB121,532,000
and RMB83,207,000 respectively (31 December 2016: total
assets and net assets of approximately RMB121,653,000 and
RMB79,261,000 respectively).

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the
Structured Contracts subsisting during the year ended or as at 31
December 2017:

(1) Exclusive Option Agreement
Date: 2 September 2013 (superseded by a new
agreement dated 21 July 2016 upon the Change
of the Registered Shareholders)

The Registered Shareholder(s)
Beijing Huiju Financial
Beijing Huiju Management

Parties:

Subject:  The Registered Shareholder(s) irrevocably agrees,
to the extent permitted under the laws of the
PRC, to transfer to Beijing Huiju Financial or any
persons(s) designated by Beijing Huiju Financial
at any time and from time to time, all or in
tranches of its equity interest in Beijing Huiju

Management.

(2)  Exclusive Technical Licensing and Management Service
Agreement
Date: 2 September 2013 (superseded by a new
agreement dated 21 July 2016 upon the change
of the Registered Shareholders)

Parties: Beijing Huiju Financial
Beijing Huiju Management
Subject:  Beijing Huiju Management engages Beijing Huiju

Financial on an exclusive basis to provide
management consultancy services in connection
with the business of Beijing Huiju Management.
In consideration of the provision of management
consultancy services, Beijing Huiju Management
will pay Beijing Huiju Financial a service fee
equivalent to 100% of the income and interests
of Beijing Huiju Management every year after
deduction of necessary costs and expenses.

RZZE—+&F+_A=+—08 AR EBRHEE
Br2REENFEEDINNDNAARE
121,5632,0007T & A R #83,207,0007t (ZZF — <
FTZA=T—H:BEERIFEENINAA
R #121,653,0007T & A R#79,261,0007T) °

UTRRBE-_T—tF+_A=1t—HLLFE
IRNZAGBELEBANZIIBZRAME

(1) BXEKGE Gz

BE: —ZE—=FNLA-HRIEMKE
BFhEEBH AT XNFELA
—+t—BHZzHBEERR)

ATH T MR
b 7 E 2R @
ItRERFEER

TE AP BE AT E AR - i

NA : AN AR [ = B B N N B

EHRIEERMEER 2 hER
MAOHERT I ER BB R
It FERBBIEE ZEMAL

(2) 8K KM EF AT B IE B SR 1 A

BH: —Z—=FAA-HREMKrE
BEhBHmAR AT —NELA
“t+—HzZFHEER)

O ERERRE
ITREEVEER

TrE ITREREEEREBLRER

RNE: MERLRERYEEE2ER

REBRELZBEMRE - £50E
FUHEEESEFRILERR
BXMHEERLEERMEERE
P8 WA KA B100% 2 BR#% &
(B BERARFAX)  ERR
HEEBRRSE 2KE -

40 Asia Pacific Silk Road Investment Company Limited 2017 Annual Report



(3)  Shareholder Voting Right Entrustment Agreement

Date:

Parties:

Subject:

2 September 2013 (superseded by a new
agreement dated 21 July 2016 upon the Change
of the Registered Shareholders)

The Registered Shareholder(s)
Beijing Huiju Financial
Beijing Huiju Management

The Registered Shareholder(s), among other
things, irrevocably and unconditionally
undertakes to authorise any person as
designated by the Beijing Huiju Financial
(including but not limited to the members of the
board of directors of Beijing Huiju Financial and
their respective successors or liquidators) to
exercise on their behalf full shareholders’ rights
under the articles of association of Beijing Huiju
Management and applicable PRC laws and
regulations, including, but not limited to (i) the
right to attend the shareholders’ meetings; (ii)
the right to sign minutes of shareholders’
meetings and shareholders’ (iii) all
shareholder’s rights under the articles of
association of Beijing Huiju Management; and (iv)
the right to file documents with the relevant
companies registry.

resolutions;

(4)  Equity Pledge Agreement

Date:

Parties:

1 April 2015 (superseded by a new agreement
dated 21 July 2016 upon the Change of the
Registered Shareholders)

Beijing Huiju Financial as the pledgee

The Registered Shareholder’s shareholders or the
Registered Shareholders upon the Change of the
Registered Shareholders (the “Pledgors”)
Beijing Huijiu Management
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Subject: The Pledgors have pledged to Beijing Huiju T2
Financial their equity interests in the Registered Al
Shareholder or Beijing Huiju Management upon
the Change of the Registered Shareholders held
by them (the "Equity Interests”) as security for
Beijing Huiju Financial's rights and interests
granted by the Exclusive Option Agreement,
Shareholder Voting Right Entrustment
Agreement, and Exclusive Technical Licensing
and Management Service Agreement (the
“Master Agreements”), which include any
payment (including legal expense), expense, loss,
interests, liquidated damages, compensation,
costs for realization of loans, costs for specific
performance of the Pledgors’ contractual
obligations, and liabilities incurred as results of
the Master Agreements’ termination, recession,
wholly or partially invalidation. Beijing Huiju
Financial shall have the right to get
compensation by converting the Equity Interests
into money and seek preferential payments from
the proceeds from the auction or sales of the
Equity Interests concerned or other disposal
methods as agreed by each party in accordance
with relevant laws and regulations of the PRC.

o

(5) Spouse Undertaking (5) HC 1% A B 1K

Date: 21 July 2016 HEH -

Parties:  Spouse of each married Registered Shareholder HEOE

H
H

Subject: The spouse of each married Registered
Shareholder has irrevocably undertaken that she A
has full knowledge of and has consented to the
entering into of the Structured Contracts by the
Registered Shareholder.

P
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As set out in the announcement of the Company dated 5
January 2017, the Company plans and intends to adopt a revised
business model in order to reduce its reliance on, and henceforth
the risks associated with the adoption of, the Structured
Contracts in the operation of the P2P financing platform (the
“Revised Business Model").

Under the Revised Business Model, online matching services
now provided through the Caijia Website will be outsourced to
third party independent internet content provider licensees (the
“ICP OPCO(s)") in such a way that (i) the ICP OPCO(s) will be
responsible for establishing, operating and administering a
branded website/webpage under the “CAIJIA” trademark of the
Group for providing the online matching services; (i) the ICP
OPCO(s) will be paid a fee in return for the provision of the
online matching services through the branded website/webpage;
(iii) the relationship between the Group and each ICP OPCO will
be a simple contractual one that existed between the parties to
an ordinary online cooperation agreement; and (iv) the Company
will not seek to own or control, whether directly or indirectly, any
part of the business or economic interests of the ICP OPCO(s)
through any contractual arrangements same as or similar to
those of the Structured Contracts. It follows that the economic
interests and results of the ICP OPCO(s) will not be consolidated
into the financial statements of the Group. The Revised Business
Model does not involve any dissipation or disposal of any assets
or interests in the Katar Global Group. All the revenue generating
assets and entities critical to the operation of P2P financing
platform will remain under the ownership, control and
management of the Group.

As at the end of reporting period, the Group has entered into a
cooperation agreement with Beijing Juxin Wealth Management
Consultant Company Limited* (It RBEH 2 EEBHRBR A A])
(being an ICP OPCO and an independent third party) and the
Company was still in course of implementing the Revised
Business Model, including without limitation, the revocation of
the ICP license held by the Group and the unwinding of certain
structured contracts.
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Compliance of the Structured Contracts with the PRC
laws, rules and regulations for operation of P2P
financing platform

Since the completion of the P2P Acquisition and up to the date
of this report, there is no evidence that comes to the attention
of the Company that the parties to the Structured Contracts have
not performed their obligations in compliance with the Structured
Contracts. Moreover, as at the date of this report, the Group has
not encountered any interference or encumbrance from any
governing bodies in operating its business under the Structured
Contracts. Thus, the Board considered that the implementation of
the Structured Contracts is satisfactory and in compliance and
the Structured Contracts shall be enforceable under the PRC laws
and regulations.

As disclosed in the Circular, on 19 January 2015, the Ministry of
Commerce of the PRC (the "MOC") published the draft Foreign
Investment Law (the “Draft Law"”) to solicit public comment,
which, when finally adopted, will have significant impact on the
foreign investment regime of the PRC. The Draft Law was
published accompanied by the MOC’s notes on, among others,
the background, guidelines and principle, and main content of the
Draft Law and elaboration on several issues including the
treatment of the existing structured contracts arrangement (in
other words, variable interest entities arrangements or contractual
arrangements) which were established before the effectiveness
of the Foreign Investment Laws. In view of the potential risks of
continuing adoption of the Structured Contracts, the Company
plans and intends to adopt the Revised Business Model as
mentioned above so as to displace the Structured Contracts, and
hence the associated risks and uncertainties. Details of the risks
relating to the Structured Contracts have been disclosed in the
Circular and the announcement of the Company dated 5 January
2017 regarding the Revised Business Model.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 60
and page 61 respectively.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of dividend.

DONATIONS
There was HK$30,000 donation made by the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: HK$78,000).

SHARE CAPITAL AND CONVERTIBLE NOTES
Details of the movement in share capital of the Company and the
Convertible Notes during the year ended 31 December 2017 are
set out in note 23 and note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as the Share Option Scheme and the Convertible Notes
issued, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares or that require the Company to enter
into any agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares were entered into by the Company during the year
or subsisted at the end of the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Movements in the distributable reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 64.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Bye-Laws and the laws in Bermuda.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years ended 31 December 2017
is set out on page 16 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.
As at 31 December 2017, 3,870,102,650 ordinary shares with a
par value of HK$0.001 each were in issue. Details are set out in
note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has adopted the share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on
12 June 2012 (the “Adoption Date”) and terminated the previous
share option scheme which had expired on 21 June 2012. The
purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives to
the grantee, including employee, officer, agent consultant or
representative of the Group (including any executive or non-
executive director of any member of the Group), to contribute to
the Group and to enable the Group to recruit high-calibre
employees and attract resources that are valuable to the Group.
The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of ten years commencing from the Adoption Date and will
expire on 11 June 2022. Details of the Share Option Scheme
were shown in the circular of the Company dated 14 May 2012.

During the annual general meeting held on 2 June 2017, the
Shareholders duly approved that, subject to and conditional upon
the listing committee of the Stock Exchange granting listing of
and permission to deal in the shares of the Company to be
issued upon the exercise of options which may be granted under
the Company’'s Share Option Scheme, the existing scheme
mandate limit in respect of the granting of options to subscribe
for shares of the Company under the Share Option Scheme be
refreshed and renewed provided that the total number of shares
of the Company which may be allotted and issued pursuant to
the grant or exercises of the options under the Share Option
Scheme (excluding options previously granted, outstanding,
cancelled, lapsed or exercised under the Share Option Scheme)
shall not exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue as
at 2 June 2017, that is 387,010,265 shares of the Company. The
Directors are authorised, subject to compliance with the Listing
Rules, to grant options under the Share Option Scheme up to the
refreshed limit and to exercise all the powers of the Company to
allot, issue and deal with shares of the Company pursuant to the
exercise of such options granted under the Share Option
Scheme. The subscription price will be a price determined by the
Board and at least the highest of: (a) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
on the date of grant of the option, which must be a business
day; (b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant of the option; and
(c) the nominal value of the shares. The total number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of options must not exceed
30% of the number of shares in issue from time to time. No
options may be granted if such grant would result in the 30%
limit being exceeded. Details were shown in the circular of the
Company dated 28 April 2017.
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No share option has been granted or exercised since the
adoption of the Share Option Scheme. The total number of
shares of the Company for issue under the Share Option
Scheme as at the date of this report was 387,010,265 shares,
representing 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office during the year
December 2017 and up to the date of this report are:

ended 31

Executive Directors
Mr. GUO Jintong (Chairman) (Appointed on 2 February 2018)

Mr. LI Jiuhua (Chief Executive Officer)

(Appointed on 7 September 2017)
Mr. HUANG Chuan Fu (Resigned on 6 October 2017)
Mr. LIANG Jian Hua (Resigned on 6 October 2017)
Ms. JIA Hui (Resigned on 6 October 2017)
Mr. JIANG Yi Ren (Resigned on 6 October 2017)

Non-Executive Directors

Ms. GAO Zhenyun (Appointed as the executive Director on
7 September 2017 and re-designated as the non-executive
Director on 2 February 2018)

Mr. YAO Luo (Appointed on 7 September 2017)

Ms. YU Yang (Appointed on 6 October 2017)

Mr. BAI Tianhui (Appointed on 7 September 2017 and resigned
on 2 February 2018)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. WONG Chun Hung

Mr. ZHENG Zhen

Mr. TO Langa Samuelson

In accordance with clause 99 of the Company's Bye-laws, Mr.
Wong Chun Hung shall retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election at
the annual general meeting.

In addition, each of Mr. Guo Jintong, Mr. Li Jiuhua, Ms. Gao
Zhenyun, Mr. Yao Luo and Ms. Yu Yang, who were appointed by
the Board as executive Directors and non-executive Directors
since the last annual general meeting, shall retire from office at
the forthcoming annual general meeting pursuant to clause
102(B) of the Company's Bye-laws and being eligible, will offer
himself/herself for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.
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The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers such
Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company, which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement and contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, any of its
fellow subsidiaries or its parent company was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management
are set out on pages 12 to 15 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors
and their respective close associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) is considered to have any interests in the businesses
which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, other than those
businesses where the Directors were appointed as directors to
represent the interests of the Company and/or the Group.

INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS
As at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors is a director or
employee of a company which has an interest or short position
in the shares, underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provision of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and none of the Directors, the
chief executive of the Company nor their close associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) had any other interests or short
positions in the shares of the Company, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which any such Directors or the chief
executive of the Company is taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required to be entered
into the register maintained by the Company, pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO; or (c) were required to be notified to the
Company or the Stock Exchange, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to clause 178 of the Company’'s Bye-Laws, every
Director, secretary and other officers shall be indemnified and
accrued harmless out of assets of the Company against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which
he/she may incur or sustain by reason of any act execution of
their duty in their offices.

Such provision was in force during the course of the financial
year ended 31 December 2017 and remained in force as of the
date of this report. The Company has taken out and maintained
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities insurance throughout the year,
which provides appropriate cover for the Directors.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND/
OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

The register of substantial Shareholders required to be kept
under section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that as at 31
December 2017, the Company had been notified of the following
substantial Shareholders’ interests, being 5% or more of the
Company's issued share capital.
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EE

Long position in ordinary shares of the Company: RAEQAREBERZHER -
Number of Percentage of the
shares Company'’s issued
Name Capacity and nature of interest interested share capital (%)
HEERZz HERATASBRITRE
waE AR BoREZEME igvig-§=| B2 (%)
Huarong Financial Services Asset Beneficial owner 2,129,143,068 55.00
Management L.P.
Huarong Financial Services Asset EnEA A
Management L.P.
Su Weibiao (Note) Held by controlled corporation 580,659,755 15.00
B AR (K7 7 BXEHRRFE
Allied Summit Inc. (Note) Beneficial owner 580,659,755 15.00

Allied Summit Inc. (#7:%) EnEA A

Note: Allied Summit Inc. is owned as to 80% by Mr. Su Weibiao and as to
remaining 20% by Mr. Ng Kwok Fai.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the aggregate amount
of revenue attributable to the Group's five largest customers and
the largest customer represented approximately 77% and 43%
respectively (2016: 62% and 27% respectively) of the Group's
total revenue.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there were no directly
costs attributable to the Group’s suppliers (2016: 91% to five
largest suppliers and 22% to the largest supplier).

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers and
suppliers.

Bt i Allied Summit Inc. H#F 4 IZ R £ HE80% i w + MR
BELEAEREEHRT20% EE -

EEAK

FAMEI VA FERRARA 2HMAEME
RARBAEBERRTRZAEH -

FEXFRHERD
REBEE-T—+H&+-_A=+—BHILEE K&
BRAEFPEGRARFPEGEREZRESFEE
RAEBBUWE NT77% K43% (ZFE—RF: 5
R E62% K 27%) °

REBE_E—+E+_A=+—RHILEE &&
ErEXRANEERGTAERER(CE—XNE:
91% M 22% D RIRERANHER KR AHER) -
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the section of “Share Options” disclosed above, at no
time during the year ended 31 December 2017 was the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group has joined the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) for all of its employees in Hong Kong and
defined contribution retirement plans for the Group’s eligible
employees in the PRC. Particulars of the MPF Scheme are set
out in “Other employee benefits” section under note 2.4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save as the Convertible Notes Amendments with details referred
to the Company’s announcements dated 5 October 2016, 27 July
2017 and circular dated 6 July 2017, the Group has not entered
into any connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions that are not exempt under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the best knowledge of the Directors, the Board
confirmed that the Company has maintained a sufficient public
float as required under the Listing Rules during the year ended
31 December 2017 and as at the date of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period
are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITORS

Following the resignation of SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited as
the auditor of the Company, ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA Company
Limited was appointed as the auditor of the Company with effect
from 9 January 2013. The Company's consolidated financial
statements for the years ended 31 December 2012 to 2014 were
audited by ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA Company Limited.

CCTH CPA Limited was appointed as the auditor of the Company
in succession to ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA Company Limited, who
retired from the office with effect from the conclusion of the
annual general meeting of the Company dated 4 June 2015.

CCTH CPA Limited has resigned as the auditor of the Company
with effect from 8 January 2016 as the Company could not reach
a consensus with CCTH CPA Limited on the audit fee for the
financial year ended 31 December 2015 and Zenith CPA Limited
has been appointed by the Directors as the new auditor of the
Company with effect from 8 January 2016 to fill the casual
vacancy following the resignation of CCTH CPA Limited.

The Company's consolidated financial statements for the years
ended 31 December 2015, 2016 and 2017 were audited by
Zenith CPA Limited.

A resolution for reappointment of Zenith CPA Limited as auditor
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Asia Pacific Silk Road Investment Company Limited
GUO Jintong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

ZENITHQ\

ASSURANCE | TRANSACTIONS | ADVISORY

T

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ASIA PACIFIC SILK ROAD
INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS PACIFIC PLYWOOD HOLDINGS
LIMITED)

(Incorporated in the Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Asia
Pacific Silk Road Investment Company Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 60 to 144,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated financial
performance and consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“"HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ASIA PACIFIC SILK ROAD
INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS PACIFIC PLYWOOD HOLDINGS
LIMITED)

(Incorporated in the Bermuda with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the
basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.

Impairment of loan and interest receivables

The impairment of loan and interest receivables is estimated by
the management through the application of judgement and use of
subjective assumptions. Provisions are made for impairment loss
when the Group will not collect all amounts due.

The loan and interest receivables amounted to HK$1,117,669,000
at 31 December 2017. Management estimated the level of
expected impairment loss, with reference to observed historical
repayment pattern and collateral against certain receivables
held. Due to the significance of loan and interest receivables
(representing approximately 26% of total assets) and the
corresponding uncertainty inherent in such an estimate, we
considered this as a key audit matter.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ASIA PACIFIC SILK ROAD
INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS PACIFIC PLYWOOD HOLDINGS
LIMITED)

(Incorporated in the Bermuda with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment of loan and interest receivables (Continued)
Our audit procedures included testing controls on a sample basis
over the approval, recording and monitoring of loan and interest
receivables, assessing the appropriateness of evaluating the
judgements and assumptions used for the impairment and testing

the loan and interest receivables aging analysis. We also
challenged the information used to determine the expected
impairment loss by considering subsequent cash collection

performance, compared the value of realisable collateral based on
available information provided by the management, assessed
whether the financial statements disclosures appropriately reflect
the Group's exposure to credit risk, and reviewed minutes of the
board of directors relating to the recoverability of loan and
interest receivables.

Impairment assessments for goodwill
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31
HK$2,182,663,000.

December 2017 was

Management determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on
an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use
of the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 3 and 13 to the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017.

Our audit procedures included evaluating the discounted cash
flow models, and assumption and parameters used by
management and the Group, giving particular attention to the
forecasted revenue, cost and results. Our procedures included
testing the assumptions used in the cash flow forecast, obtaining
corroborative evidence to support the growth rate by comparing
it to historic inflation rates, and assessing the reasonableness of
the discount rates applied by comparing it to the current market
condition for the cash generating unit. A valuation specialist
involved to review the reasonableness for the discount rate and
major commercial parameters used in the cash flow forecast. We
also carried out audit procedures on management’s sensitivity
calculations and then assessed the disclosures on the impairment
testing, specifically the key assumptions that had the most
significant effect on the determination of the recoverable amount
of the goodwill, such as the discount rate and growth rate.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ASIA PACIFIC SILK ROAD
INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS PACIFIC PLYWOOD HOLDINGS
LIMITED)

(Incorporated in the Bermuda with limited liability)

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ASIA PACIFIC SILK ROAD
INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS PACIFIC PLYWOOD HOLDINGS
LIMITED)

(Incorporated in the Bermuda with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

misstatement when

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise

professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the

consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
3% BRD RS

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ASIA PACIFIC SILK ROAD
INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS PACIFIC PLYWOOD HOLDINGS
LIMITED)

(Incorporated in the Bermuda with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’'s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ASIA PACIFIC SILK ROAD
INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS PACIFIC PLYWOOD HOLDINGS
LIMITED)

(Incorporated in the Bermuda with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Cheng Po Yuen.

Zenith CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Cheng Po Yuen

Practising Certificate Number: P04887
Hong Kong

29 March 2018

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
¥ 3% BRD RS
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

,iﬂ/_\ 3 \/

,Z\vT\ = ﬁﬁi‘%

Year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+H&+-_A=+—BItFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ioN=3 FET FET
REVENUE Y == 5 273,347 555,386
Cost of services Ak 75 BX A< — (7817)
Gross profit £ 273,347 554,605
Other income and gains E AU A KUz 5 16,541 53,422
Selling and distribution expenses & & 2 5 X (140) (15,030)
Administrative expenses T E R (135,076) (147,473)
Other expenses HibHAx (26,004) (23,170)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX MR B A& 7 6 128,668 422,354
Income tax expense T3 R X 9 (41,219) (89,290)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F A T 87,449 333,064
Attributable to: T 51 %18 FE(S
Owners of the parent ISE/NEIE7 N 82,274 321,907
Non-controlling interests JEIERE R 5,175 11,157
87,449 333,064
EARNINGS PER SHARE BRAREBAEREBAEM
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY BRER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT
Basic AR
- For profit for the year - B FE N A 11 HK2.13 cents HK9.40 cents
7 Al &I
Diluted s
— For profit for the year - B FENmF HK0.56 cents HK2.18 cents

7 1l

78 il
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COI\/IPREHENSIVE INCOME

N

Sy

Year ended 31 December 2017
—tF+ZA=+—HIEFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B i FHET FET
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F R s F 87,449 333,064
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ Hft 2@z (Fi8)
(LOSS)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income to FREZRBEEFT HEE
be reclassified to profit or loss in BmcEMmE2HE
subsequent periods: (B8),/ W -
Available-for-sale investments: AHEERE
Changes in fair value NEEEE (37,052) (339,817)
Reclassification adjustments for (loss)/ sfA#LZAEEZmE Z
gain included in the consolidated (BB Wamz
statement of profit or loss EFHERAE
— gain on disposal - HEkE=E 5 - (30,291)
— impairment losses - REEBE 25,534 1,600
(11,518) (368,508)
Exchange differences: 5=
Exchange differences on translation &5 Jh 2 # Fr E 4
of foreign operations 2 [ H =R 23,232 (16,473)
Reclassification adjustments REEBINEBIEL
for foreign operations disposal ZEHMOBERAE 27 = (1,446)
23,232 (17,919)
NET OTHER COMPREHENSIVE BREZBBENRS2EE
INCOME/(LOSS) TO BE BRHEMEE
RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT OR W (R BER
LOSS IN SUBSEQUENT PERIODS FREMR2E
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Wi (E5HR) ENK
INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR, BiE
NET OF TAX 11,714 (386,427)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ FRZHEW & (Fi8)
(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FgC] 99,163 (53,363)
Attributable to: T %) %18 FE {h -
Owners of the parent (SR/NCIEZ SN 93,059 (64,164)
Non-controlling interests FE 1 AR B 5 6,104 10,801
99,163 (53,363)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

4T e B S AR O R 3R

31 December 2017
—E—LFT-AZT—H

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
HiaE TET TH&E T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Plant and equipment % B & 5% 15 12 1,748 2,908
Goodwill EES 13 2,182,663 2,182,663
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 15 731,435 718,465
Deposits and prepayments & RIENRIEA 18 19,689 865
Total non-current assets EmMBEEHME 2,935,535 2,904,901
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Loan and interest receivables JE W E & F B 16 1,117,669 878,079
Trade receivables & Uk BR 7K 17 — 670
Deposits, prepayments and e BENRER
other receivables H b & I 3k 18 18 27,733 4,103
Tax recoverable A] Y [B] %7 18 5,549 5,549
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBESEEY 19 218,956 348,357
Total current assets MEBBEELE 1,369,907 1,236,758
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Other payables and accruals HEmENRIEREGER 20 121,327 13,333
Tax payable JE - 75 18 3,849 47179
Total current liabilities B BERT 125,176 60,512
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFEE 1,244,731 1,176,246
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHAERABDER
LIABILITIES 4,180,266 4,081,147
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities BEHIEAER 22 (34) (78)
Net assets BEFHE 4,180,232 4,081,069
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e B W&

31 December 2017
—E—LFT-AZT—H

2017 2016
—E—tHF AN S
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B i FTET FHET
EQUITY E =
Equity attributable to BATRERA
owners of the parent EhER
Share capital fi% 2 23 3,870 3,870
Reserves ff& &5 4,152,763 4,059,704
4,156,633 4,063,574
Non-controlling interests IE 2= iR 4 = 23,599 17,495
Total equity T o5 R 4,180,232 4,081,069
Guo Jintong Li Jiuhua
e E ZThE
Director Director
EF EZE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

== \ 7

E Z N /|\|:|/|\

A
LA

w

HE) R

Year ended 31 December 2017

HE_T—

tHE T+ A=+ -BLFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BARAKEEARES
Available-
for-sale Equity Retained
Share investment PRC Exchange component of profits/ Non-
Share premium revaluation Contributed statutory fluctuation  convertible (accumulated controlling
capital account reserve surplus  reserve reserve notes losses) Total interests Total equity
RH AHHERE hEEE EXRY TRREBZ RERER/
BA  EER EffFEF RARHK i i BEHs (RHER) @i FRRER REHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(note 23) (note 25) (note 21)
TEx TFEx TR TET TER TR THERT TEx TEx TR TR
(K #23) (K7t 25) (Kt i21)
At 1 January 2016 R-ZE-~"5¥—F—H 2,782 721,226 999,272 277,102 5,282 (2,146) 2,341,896 (217,676) 4,127,738 7,614 4,135,352
Profit for the year F R F - - = - & - S 321,907 321,907 11,157 333,064
Other comprehensive loss FREMEEER:
for the year:
Available-for-sale investments: A H&ERE
- Change in fair value -ALEES = = (339,817) = = = = - (339,817) = (339,817)
- Reclassification -ENSRAE
adjustments = = (28,691) - - - - - (28,691 - (28,691)
Exchange differences related to /N EKMAHE L =5
foreign operations = = = - - (12,372) - - (12,372) (4,101) (16,473)
Adjustments relating to disposal i &M B AR EH 2
of subsidiaries (note 27) HE(Hit27) T - - - = (5,191) - - (5,191) 3,745 (1,446)
Total comprehensive (loss)/ FR2E(FE)/ WaesE
income for the year . - (368,508) o - (17,563) = 321,907 (64,164) 10,801 (53,363)
Capital injection EE = = = = = = = = = 1,000 1,000
Issue of new shares upon Rt AR ERESR
conversion of the BB {73 R
mandatory convertible notes 1,088 211,244 = = = = 2,332) = = = =
Appropriation to statutory Y1
reserve = = = = 15,758 = b (15,758) - * o
Disposal of subsidiaries HEN B AR (M it27)
(note 27) = S = = = - = = = (1,920) (1,920)
At 31 December 2016 and RZE-—A¥+-A=t+—8H
1 January 2017 k=Z—-tF&—-f—A8 3,870 932,470* 630,764* 277,102%  21,040* (19,709)*  2,129,564* 88,473* 4,063,574 17,495 4,081,069
Profit for the year FREF = = = - - - - 82,274 82,274 5,175 87,449
Other comprehensive loss FREMEEER:
for the year:
Available-for-sale investments: A H&ERE
- Change in fair value -ALEEES = = (37,052) - - - - - (37,052) - (37,052)
- Reclassification -ENSRAE
adjustments = = 25,534 = = = = = 25,534 = 25,534
Exchange differences related to /SN EKMABEE L =8
foreign operations = = = = = 22,303 = = 22,303 929 23,232
Total comprehensive (loss)/ FREE(EE)/
income for the year W2k @ = = (11,518) - - 22,303 - 82,274 93,059 6,104 99,163
Appropriation to statutory PEEETREE
reserve = = = = 4,520 = = (4,520) = = =
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—+%F
+-A=+-H 3,870 932,470* 619,246* 277,102*  25,560* 2,594* 2,129,564* 166,227* 4,156,633 23,599 4,180,232
@ These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * ZERBEEOERAMBUARBRANZ 66 HE
HK$4,162,763,000 (2016: HK$4,059,704,000) in the consolidated statement Rl SRR SE T P Ipgy T 4.059.704,000%

of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

N =
/\\/T\ Eﬁ, v //Zﬁ == %
Year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_ZT—+tF+-_A=+—HLEFE
2017 2016
—F—tF —E—RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
o it FHE T FE T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETH HERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax R ¢ A& A 128,668 422,354
Adjustments for: BT B IBEEL 2 A
Bank interest income BT H B WA 5 (1,163) (1,150)
Dividend income from available-for- A i ﬁ%&éZ
sale investments & B A 5 = (4,193)
Depreciation T & 6 1,057 4,339
Impairment of other receivables H fth f& W SR IE R B 6 - 1,941
Impairment of available-for-sale At E R B RE
investments 6 25,534 11,280
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale &AM HERE 2
investments W &= 5 - (30,189)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB QAR Z WS 5 = (16,201)
Loss on disposal of items of plant HEMERZEEER 2
and equipment & 18 6 470 9,949
154,566 398,130
Increase in loan and interest FE W E X K F B N
receivables (239,590) (322,899)
Decrease in trade receivables & U BR TR 670 40,121
(Increase)/decrease in other Eiﬂﬁﬂgqﬁ RIE (Eh0) ,m
receivables (42,454) 4,631
Increase in cash held on behalf of REELERFFAZES
brokerage clients 20 = (12,820)
Increase in account payable to B 48 40 B P SR IR IS A0
brokerage clients = 12,820
Increase/(decrease) in other payables E b FEfI X E & FE=+ & F
and accruals # i, Ot ) 107,994 (8,585)
Cash generated (used in)/from wE (A EEx2
operations B (18,814) 111,398
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENBEBNERH = (4,376)
PRC income tax paid BN MEH (88,784) (61,278)
Net cash flows (used in)/from KEE (SR EEZ
operating activities RemE FE (107,598) 45,744
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

Year ended 31 December 2017
HE_ZT—+tF+-A=+—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B it TET THE T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFHZHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Bank interest received B U R 17 5 & 1,163 1,150
Proceeds from disposal of available- HE&T" —H# HEKREZ
for-sale investments Fr 15 31 18 - 110,044
Dividend received from unlisted BEWIELETIRE Z K E
investments = 4,193
Purchases of available-for-sale BEUHRIERLRE
investments (50,022) (10,013)
Acquisition of assets and liabilities WEEERARE - 487
Acquisition of intangible assets WEEEFEE 14 = (500)
Acquisition of other long term assets W B E & EIE E = (205)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEK B R R 27 - 17,889
Purchases of items of plant and BEREKLXHEEE
equipment 12 (289) (1,174)
Proceeds from disposal of items of Hj’ifJ%& SHEIEE ME
plant and equipment KIE 25 729
Net cash flows (used in)/from investing % & &8 (B FR) 7 &
activities ZHEEmEFHE (49,123) 122,600
CASH FLOWS FROM A FINANCING BEFEHBELRE
ACTIVITY
Capital injection from a non-controlling JF 5 i% i% )£ &
shareholder = 1,000
Net cash flows from a financing BEESELEZ
activity REMEFHE = 1,000
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN }Rﬁ&iﬁ%%f‘%
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ’J‘)/imﬂﬂggﬁ (156,721) 169,344
Cash and cash equivalents at i%ﬂzfﬁéﬁﬁ ZEBY
beginning
of year 348,357 197,059
Effect of foreign exchange rate INEEERRE) 2 o B
changes, net ik 27,320 (18,046)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT X2 HERBLEEY
END OF YEAR 218,956 348,357
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF ReRASEEYHEE
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Vg
Cash and bank balances fﬁfi\&fﬂ 1745 84 19 140,170 239,735
Non-pledged time deposits with RERS %Jﬁfﬁﬁﬁ R AR
original maturity of less than three _TI 2 EEHE A
months when acquired IEEN 19 78,786 108,622
Cash and cash equivalents as BB MRRAREAINIE S R
stated in the statement of financial HeZEEY
position 218,956 348,357
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

With effect from 7 March 2018, the English name of the
Company was changed from Pacific Plywood Holdings
Limited to Asia Pacific Silk Road Investment Company
Limited and the Chinese name gz X # R E G R A @) was
adopted as the secondary name of the Company to replace
the previous Chinese name AF/F&E 2L HF R AT which
had been used for identification purposes only.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.
The registered address of the Company is located at
Canon's Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM 12,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company
was located at Units 3301-3303, 33/F, West Shun Tak
Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Sheung Wan,
Hong Kong and has been changed to 35/F, Bank of China
Tower, 1 Garden Road, Hong Kong with effect from 20
March 2018.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following
principal activities:

o Operation of peer-to-peer (“P2P") financing platform
under the “CAIJIA” brand and other loan facilitation
services

° Money lending

° Securities investments

In the opinion of the directors, the holding company and
the ultimate holding company of the Company is Huarong
Financial Services Asset Management L.P., an exempted
limited partnership, which is incorporated in the Cayman
Islands.

1.

BRGBIRERARAT

B 155 S 5= I 5

31 December 2017

—T—tF+=-A=+—H
RAIREBEEHR

KA A2 E XA WE B [Pacific Plywood
Holdings Limited| % 2k & [Asia Pacific Silk
Road Investment Company Limited] »
NEBERAABIEEBR AR IEBEERMN
BARREZRE - UEREMEE B 2 AT
R EMIATFTEEEREBR AR B
—E-NF=ZAtRARBER -

RABARBREIMKICBEREER
A EROREERFT ET o AR Az st
b #iE & Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton, HM 12, Bermuda ° &"’A & 2 £
ZEEMB AR EBSERTHEEF
168—2005% (= == 0\ Fi FE331£3301-03 % -
PR E—N\E=A-_tHEBEEBMHEE
B IR ANE351E o

AREERFAREUNTEZER:

o UIHlmiggeuE@8aE (P2P))
BEFEREMERPN RS

e fEBE

I

\

e JFEHFRE

BEERA  ARAl 2 ERAR R &KER
‘A &) AHuarong Financial Services Asset
Management L.P. (—fE R 2 8 S K
UZEREBREEERE) -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R Y A

31 December 2017
—T—+tF+=-A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31

RAREEER (&)

CopE PR
ARABETEMBRAAR-ZE-—RER_F

68

December 2016 and 2017 are as follows:

—tFF+ A=t —HZHFBHOT:

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

Issued ordinary/
registered share

Percentage of equity
attributable to the

Name business capital Company Principal activities
AR
8 R & 3 it B BRILE AMRE XATEGERZAIL FEEH
Direct Indirect
BEE SF:3
Best Harvest Asia Limited* British Virgin Islands United States Dollars 100% - Securities trading
BB MER AR ("BVI")/Hong Kong ("USD") 1 BHHEE
EBELEE /B 1ET
Joy Wealth Finance Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong Dollars 100% - Money lending
EMBBAERAR B ("HK$") 1 E-
1T
Beijing Huiju Wealth Management PRC Renminbi ("RMB") N 96% Operation of an internet financing
Consultant Company Limited* % 4 H B 50,000,000 platform
TRERMEEEEAAGRAA A K #50,000,0007C KREEMBRETA
Chongging KangDingAo Financing PRC UsD1,000,000 - 96% Provision of services in relation
Consulting Co. Limited#? * H B 1,000,000% 7T to the promotion and
EERSARVBHAGRAR application of the internet
financing platform
REEEREREHARE
FoaEBR%
Chengdu Subang Management Consulting  PRC USD1,000,000 - 96% Provision of services in relation
Co. Limited#2 4 H 1,000,000% 7T to the promotion and
KBREERFZAER AT application of the internet
financing platform
RUEEREREHAERE
FoEBR%
Shenyang Subang Management Consulting PRC USD1,000,000 = 96% Provision of services in relation
Co. Limited#2 4 H 1,000,000% 7T to the promotion and
EEREERAABRATZ application of the internet
financing platform
RUEEREREHAERE
FoEBR%
Kunming Subang Enterprise Management PRC RMB6,000,000 = 96% Provision of services in relation
Co. Limited#3 4 il A K #6,000,0007C to the promotion and

ERRECRXERARAR
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R Y R

31 December 2017
Z—t+F+-_F=+—H

RAREEER (#)

iip:- PNCIE-E 1€ ))

Place of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
registration and registered share attributable to the
Name business capital Company Principal activities
310
8 Ml K% & 3 it B BRILE FMREE XAADEGEZEIL TEXR
Direct Indirect
BE#E &
Shenzhen Subang Management Consulting PRC RMB10,000,000 - 96% Provision of services in
Co. Limited#3 4 T A K #10,000,0007C relation to the promotion
RYREERFRERAA and application of the
internet financing platform
RUEEEREREHBERE
FaB@ER®
Wouxi Subang Management Consulting Co.  PRC RMB6,000,000 - 96% Provision of services in
Limited* 3 4 s A K #6,000,0007C relation to the promotion
B REEEEAFRDF and application of the
internet financing platform
REEEREREHBERE
FaB@R%
Shanghai Yugong Financial Consulting Co., PRC RMB1,050,000 - 96% Provision of loan facilitation
Limited* 3 4 H A R #1,050,0007T services
FEEDHBEEABRAF REERTH MRS
Katar Global Limited* BVI UsSD1,000 - 96% Provision of loan facilitation
MERKA R DA REBRELES 1,000 7T services
RUEBEXRNRE
4 The English names of the Chinese entitles are translation of their hd RAME  FEERBZAXEBAEPXAE

Chinese names and are included herein for identification purpose

only.

1. Those companies are non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company
and accordingly, are accounted for as subsidiaries by virtue of the
Company’s control over them.

2. These entities are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises
under PRC law.

8, These entities are registered as limited liability companies under PRC
law.
4. The statutory financial statement of these subsidiaries are not audited

by Zenith CPA Limited.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R Y A

31 December 2017
—T—+tF+=-A=+—H

1.

2.1

70

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group is
committed to make capital contributions as registered share
capital to certain of its subsidiaries in the PRC of
RMB8,900,000 and RMB5,000,000 by 12 October 2035
and 28 October 2065, respectively.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared

in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting

Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“"HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for certain of
equity investments which have been measured at fair value.
These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”). A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2.1

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (i) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group’'s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to
profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 2.2
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for
the first time for the current year's financial statements:

Amendments to Disclosure Initiative
HKAS 7
Amendments to Recognition of Deferred Tax
HKAS 12 Assets for Unrealised Losses
Amendments to Disclosure of Interests in Other

HKFRS 12 included in Entities: Clarification of the
Annual Improvements Scope of HKFRS 12

to HKFRSs 2014—

2016 Cycle

None of the above amendments to HKFRSs has had a

significant financial effect on these consolidated financial
statements.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

The nature and the

impact of the amendments are

described below:

(a)

Amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements
to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both changes arising from cash
flows and non-cash changes. The adoption of the
amendments has no impact on these consolidated
financial statements as the Group did not have any
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
during the year.

Amendments to HKAS 12 clarify that an entity, when
assessing whether taxable profits will be available
against which it can utilise a deductible temporary
difference, needs to consider whether
restricts the sources of taxable profits against which
it may make deductions on the reversal of that
deductible temporary difference. Furthermore, the
amendments provide guidance on how an entity
should determine future taxable profits and explain the
circumstances in which taxable profit may include the
recovery of some assets for more than their carrying
amount. The amendments have had no impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group as the
Group has no deductible temporary differences or
assets that are in the scope of the amendments.

tax law

Amendments to HKFRS 12 clarify that the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 12, other than those
disclosure requirements in paragraphs B10 to B16 of
HKFRS 12, apply to an entity's interest in a
subsidiary, a joint venture or an associate, or a portion
of its interest in a joint venture or an associate that is
classified as held for sale or included in a disposal
group classified as held for sale. The amendments
have had no impact on the Group's consolidated
financial statements as the Group do not have
subsidiaries classified as a disposal group held for sale
as at 31 December 2017.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements:

Amendments to
HKFRS 2

Amendments to
HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9
Amendments to
HKFRS 9
Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011)
HKFRS 15

Amendments to
HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
Amendments to
HKAS 28
Amendments to
HKAS 40
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Annual Improvements

2014-2016 Cycle

Annual Improvements

2015-2017 Cycle

> woN -
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Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transactions’

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts’

Financial Instruments’

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers'

Clarifications to HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with
Customers'

Leases?®

Insurance Contracts®

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures?

Transtfers of Investment Property’

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Amendments to HKFRS 1 and
HKAS 28’

Amendments to HKFRS 3,
HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, and
HKAS 237

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is described below. The
actual impacts upon adoption could be different to those
below, depending on additional reasonable and supportable
information being made available to the Group at the time
of applying the standards and the transitional provisions and
policy options finally adopted.

The HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 2 in August
2016 that address three main areas: the effects of vesting
conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled share-
based payment transaction; the classification of a share-
based payment transaction with net settlement features for
withholding a certain amount in order to meet the an
employee’s tax obligation associated with the share-based
payment; and accounting where a modification to the terms
and conditions of a share-based payment transaction
changes its classification from cash-settled to equity-
settled. The amendments clarify that the approach used to
account for vesting conditions when measuring equity-
settled share-based payments also applies to cash-settled
share-based payments. The amendments introduce an
exception so that a share-based payment transaction with
net share settlement features for withholding a certain
amount in order to meet the employee’s tax obligation is
classified in its entirety as an equity-settled share-based
payment transaction when certain conditions are met.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that if the terms and
conditions of a cash-settled share-based payment
transaction are modified, with the result that it becomes an
equity-settled share-based payment transaction, the
transaction is accounted for as an equity-settled transaction
from the date of the modification. On adoption, entities are
required to apply the amendments without restating prior
periods, but retrospective application is permitted if they
elect to adopt for all three amendments and other criteria
are met. The Group expects to will adopt the amendments
from 1 January 2018. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version of
HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the financial
instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all previous
versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting. The Group will adopt
HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2018. The Group will not restate
comparative information and will recognise any transition
adjustments against the opening balance of equity at 1
January 2018. During 2017, the Group has performed a
detailed assessment of the impact of the adoption of
HKFRS 9. The expected impacts relate to the classification
and measurement and the impairment requirements and are
summarised as follows:

(a) Classification and measurement

The Group does not expect that the adoption of
HKFRS 9 will have a significant impact on the
classification and measurement of its financial assets.
It expects to continue measuring at fair value all
financial assets currently held at fair value. Equity
investments currently held as available for sale will be
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income as the investments are intended to be held for
the foreseeable future and the Group expects to apply
the option to present fair value changes in other
comprehensive income. Gains and losses recorded in
other comprehensive income for the equity
investments cannot be recycled to profit or loss when
the investments are derecognised.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

(b)

Impairment

HKFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instruments
recorded at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income, lease receivables, loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts that
are not accounted for at fair value through profit or
loss under HKFRS 9, to be recorded based on an
expected credit loss model either on a twelve-month
basis or a lifetime basis. The Group will apply the
simplified approach and record lifetime expected
losses that are estimated based on the present values
of all cash shortfalls over the remaining life of all of its
loan and interest receivables. Furthermore, the Group
will apply the general approach and record twelve-
month expected credit losses that are estimated
based on the possible default events on its other
receivables within the next twelve months. The Group
has expected that the provision for impairment will
increase with a corresponding related decrease in
deferred tax labilities upon the initial adoption of the
standard.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

HKFRS 15, issued in July 2014, establishes a new five-step
model to account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide
a more structured approach for measuring and recognising
revenue. The standard also introduces extensive qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements, including
disaggregation of total revenue, information about
performance obligations, changes in contract asset and
liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede all
current revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs.
Either a full retrospective application or a modified
retrospective adoption is required on the initial application
of the standard. In June 2016, the HKICPA issued
amendments to HKFRS 15 to address the implementation
issues on identifying performance obligations, application
guidance on principal versus agent and licences of
intellectual property, and transition. The amendments are
also intended to help ensure a more consistent application
when entities adopt HKFRS 15 and decrease the cost and
complexity of applying the standard. The Group will adopt
HKFRS 15 from 1 January 2018 and plans to adopt the full
retrospective approach. During 2017, the Group has
performed detailed assessment on the impact of the
adoption of HKFRS 15 and expected that the standard will
not have significant impact, when applied, on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

HKFRS 16, issued in May 2016, replaces HKAS 17 Leases,
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases -
Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The
standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and
requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for most
leases. The standard includes two recognition exemptions
for lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-term
leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will
recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease
liability) and an asset representing the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use
asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition of
investment property in HKAS 40, or relates to a class of
property, plant and equipment to which the revaluation
model is applied. The lease liability is subsequently
increased to reflect the interest on the lease liability and
reduced for the lease payments.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Lessees will be required to separately recognise the
interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation
expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will also be
required to remeasure the lease liability upon the
occurrence of certain events, such as change in the lease
term and change in future lease payments resulting from a
change in an index or rate used to determine those
payments. Lessees will generally recognise the amount of
the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to
the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16
is substantially unchanged from the accounting under HKAS
17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the
same classification principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish
between operating leases and finance leases. HKFRS 16
requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive
disclosures than under HKAS 17. Lessees can choose to
apply the standard using either a full retrospective or a
modified retrospective approach. The Group expects to
adopt HKFRS 16 from 1 January 2019. The Group is
currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 16 upon adoption
and is considering whether it will choose to take advantage
of the practical expedients available and which transition
approach and reliefs will be adopted. As disclosed in note
28 to the consolidated financial statements, at 31
December 2017, the Group had future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in
aggregate of approximately HK$103,988,000. Upon adoption
of HKAS 16, certain amounts included therein may need to
be recognised as new right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities. Further analysis, however, will be needed to
determine the amount of new rights of use assets and
lease liabilities to be recognised, including, but not limited
to, any amounts relating to leases of low-value assets and
short term leases, other practical expedients and reliefs
chosen, and new leases entered into before the date of
adoption.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22, issued in June 2017, provides guidance
on how to determine the date of the transaction when
applying HKAS 21 to the situation where an entity receives
or pays advance consideration in a foreign currency and
recognises a non-monetary asset or liability. The
interpretation clarifies that the date of the transaction for
the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on
initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income
(or part of it) is the date on which an entity initially
recognises the non-monetary asset (such as a prepayment)
or non-monetary liability (such as deferred income) arising
from the payment or receipt of the advance consideration.
If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance of
recognising the related item, the entity must determine the
transaction date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration. Entities may apply the interpretation on a full
retrospective basis or on a prospective basis, either from
the beginning of the reporting period in which the entity
first applies the interpretation or the beginning of the prior
reporting period presented as comparative information in
the consolidated financial statements of the reporting
period in which the entity first applies the interpretation.
The Group expects to adopt the interpretation prospectively
from 1 January 2018. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23, issued in July 2017, addresses the
accounting for income taxes (current and deferred) when
tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the
application of HKAS 12 (often referred to as “uncertain tax
positions”). The interpretation does not apply to taxes or
levies outside the scope of HKAS 12, nor does it
specifically include requirements relating to interest and
penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments. The
interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an entity
considers uncertain tax treatments separately; (i) the
assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax
treatments by taxation authorities; (i) how an entity
determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused
tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how
an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances.
The interpretation is to be applied retrospectively, either
fully retrospectively without the use of hindsight or
retrospectively with the cumulative effect of application as
an adjustment to the opening equity at the date of initial
application, without the restatement of comparative
information. The Group expects to adopt the interpretation
from 1 January 2019. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle, issued
in February 2018, sets out amendments to HKFRS 3,
HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and HKAS 23. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments from 1 January 2019. None of the
amendments are expected to have a significant financial
impact on the Group. Details of the amendments are as
follows:

o HKFRS 3 Business Combinations: Clarifies that, when
an entity obtains control of a business that is a joint
operation, it must apply the requirements for a
business combination achieved in stages and
remeasure its entire previously held interest in the
joint operation at fair value.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

° HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements: Clarifies that when an
entity that participates in (but does not have joint
control of) a joint operation, obtains joint control over
that joint operation that is a business, it does not
remeasure the interest it previously held in that joint
operation.

° HKAS 12 Income Taxes: Clarifies that an entity
recognises all income tax consequences of dividends
in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or
equity, depending on where the entity recognised the
originating transaction or event that generated the
distributable profits giving rise to the dividend.

° HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs: Clarifies that an entity
treats as part of general borrowings any specific
borrowing originally made to develop a qualifying
asset, and that is still outstanding, when substantially
all of the activities necessary to prepare that asset for
its intended use or sales are complete.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the
event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair
value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or
loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of
cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units
or groups of units.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

84

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain
or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value of
the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either in the principal market for the asset or liability,
or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by
the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or
by selling it to another market participant that would use
the asset in its highest and best use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 —  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 —  based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
financial assets and goodwill), the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’'s value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to
an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to
the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amounts, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is amounted
for in accordance with relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i)

(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (Continued)

Plant and equipment and depreciation

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an
item of plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of period of the
lease terms and 20%
Furniture, fittings and 20% to 33%
equipment
Motor vehicles 20%

Where parts of an item of plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under operating leases net of any incentives
received from the lessor are charged to the statement of
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial investments,
as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial
assets, except in the case of financial assets recorded at
fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in other income and gains in the
statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
in other expenses for loans and receivables.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments
Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed equity investments. Equity
investments classified as available for sale are those which
are neither classified as held for trading nor designated as
at fair value through profit or loss.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value, with
unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in other income, or until the
investment is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the statement of
profit or loss in other gains or losses. Interest and
dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-sale
financial investments are reported as interest income and
dividend income, respectively and are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss as other income and gains in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash

flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration the Group could be required to

repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group
of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows,
such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)
The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured
as the difference between the asset’'s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The
present value of the estimated future cash flows is
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues to
be accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the rate
of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is
later recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses
in the statement of profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that an investment or a group of
investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in the
statement of profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available for
sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below
its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost
of the investment and “prolonged” against the period in
which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where
there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss -
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
investment previously recognised in the statement of profit
or loss — is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment
losses on equity instruments classified as available for sale
are not reversed through the statement of profit or loss.
Increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to
which the fair value of an investment less than cost.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
loans and borrowings.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly

attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include other payables.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHBEBEH)

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, other payables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Convertible notes

The component of convertible notes that exhibits
characteristics of a liability is recognised as a liability in the
statement of financial position, net of transaction costs. On
issuance of convertible notes, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using a market rate for an
equivalent non-convertible notes; and this amount is carried
as a long term liability on the amortised cost basis until
extinguished on conversion or redemption. The remainder
of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is
recognised and included in shareholders’ equity, net of
transaction costs. The carrying amount of the conversion
option is not remeasured in subsequent years. Transaction
costs are apportioned between the liability and equity
components of the convertible bonds based on the
allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity
components when the instruments are first recognised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a
new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, which are not
restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it
is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to
be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the statement of
profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

98

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@)  Income from the rendering of services, when the
services are rendered;

(b)  Realised fair value gains or losses on securities trading
are recognised on a trade date basis whilst unrealised
fair value gains or losses on securities with reference
to the prices ruling at the end of the reporting period;

(c)  Interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset; and

(d) Dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.

Other employee benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operates
in Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute
certain percentage of its payroll costs, depending on the
location of the subsidiaries of their payroll costs depending
on the location of the subsidiaries of their payroll costs to
the central pension scheme. The contributions are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of profit or loss are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

100

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets
or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of available-for-sale investments

The Group classifies certain assets as available-for-sale
investments and recognised movements of their fair values
in equity. When the fair value declines, management makes
assumptions about the decline in value to determine
whether there is an impairment that should be recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. At 31 December 2017,
impairment loss of HK$25,534,000 have been recognised
for available-for-sale investments (2016: HK$11,280,000).
Further details are given in note 15.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill has
been allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the
Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash
flows from the cash-generating units and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. Further details are given in note 13.

Impairment of loan and interest receivables

The Group establishes, through charges against the
statement of profit or loss, impairment allowances in
respect of estimated incurred loss in loan and interest
receivables. The allowances consist of individual impairment
allowances. The overall impairment allowances represent
the aggregate amount by which the management considers
necessary to write-down its loan portfolio in order to state
at its estimated net recoverable value. Management
reassesses the impairment of loan and interest receivables
at each reporting date.

3.
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3.

102

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of loan and interest receivables (Continued)
In determining collective impairment allowances,
management uses estimates based on historical experience
for assets with credit risk characteristics and objective
evidence of impairment similar to those in the portfolio.

The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both
the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates
and actual loss experience.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their services and has five
reportable operating segments as follows:

(@)  Loan facilitation services: operation of P2P financing
platform under the CAIJIA brand and other loan
facilitation services;

(b)  Money lending: provision of loan financing;

(c)  Securities investments: trading of securities and
investment in long-term securities;

(d)  Consultancy services: provision of corporate secretarial
and consultancy services (disposed during the year
ended 31 December 2016); and

(e) Forestry business: forest logging and harvesting
(disposed during the year ended 31 December 2016).
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/
loss before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is
measured consistently with the Group’s profit/loss before
tax except that bank interest income, gain on disposal of
subsidiaries, as well as head office and corporate income
and expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude tax recoverable and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these
assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, deferred tax
liabilities and other unallocated head office and corporate

liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.
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SELBAERNE RRNFABRR
EEENRERASEESKEN X
B DBRADENRAZHRS M8
BaTfh - BNAKE AR BADE B R
B - KBEBRBAEN BEZFEIE
BASEBRBAEN  BEZFEFIAE
-2 A ENEREMEBRRTAER
A-HEMNBRARZEEARERER K
REABPARFAX -

AR AT U B B IR A S Kb R 70 B A8 % = 5
NRRAREENREBEEERE  HOHME
ETERRZETEE

HREMNHRIE  EEHRBEABEAREMR
TRENERLRAREENREEAEEE
B -8oBAaBETER%FRE -

Loan
facilitation Money Securities
Year ended 31 December 2017 services lending investments Total
B
BE-Z—tF+=-HA=+—HLEFE 7 A BR # BE BERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°'000 HK$°000
FHET FHET FET TER
Segment revenue 2 5B U =
Revenue from external customers REINARP 2 W= 164,730 108,617 - 273,347
Segment results D EEE 151,055 86,022 (35,434) 201,643
Reconciliation: -
Bank interest income RITH B WA 1,163
Corporate and other unallocated AR R EM KD ERX
expenses (74,138)
Profit before tax B B A1 A 128,668
Other segment information H 5 36 &
Depreciation e 419 445 - 864
Impairment of available-for-sale AHHERERE
investments = = 25,534 25,534
Loss on disposal of items of plant and HEMERRZREERZ
equipment &5 8 449 - - 449
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REFTER (8)
(Continued)
Loan
facilitation Money Securities  Consultancy Forestry
Year ended 31 December 2016 services lending  investments services  business Total
HE-_Z—A"E+-A=+—HLFE PR BE BEEE BHRY HRMARER @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FAT FAT FB T FAT FAT
Segment revenue 2 U =
Revenue from external REINARFZ
customers I 7 490,662 64,374 = 350 - 555,386
Segment results & 390,504 64,406 23,036 (1,376) (5) 476,565
Reconciliation: HEE -
Bank interest income SRITF B A 1,150
Gain on disposal of HEMRBEARZ
subsidiaries I &= 16,201
Corporate and other AR R EA
unallocated expenses RHEHAX (71,562)
Profit before tax R 3% B g A 422,354
Other segment H 5 &
information
Depreciation ne 3,984 12 = = = 3,996
Dividend income % B A - - 4,193 - - 4,193
Gain on disposal of HERHEE
available-for-sale ®E 2 W=
investments - = 30,189 = - 30,189
Impairment of available-for- @] ff i & % &
sale investments B - - 11,280 - - 11,280
Impairment of H i fE T kI8
other receivables BB 1,941 = = = - 1,941
Loss on disposal of items of H & & E K& &
plant and equipment HE Z &8 9,949 - - - - 9,949
Capital expenditure EXRBEX 301 = - - - 301
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HERE)

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION B
(Continued)
Loan
facilitation Money Securities
31 December 2017 services lending investments Total
BX
—E2—tH+=A=+-—-H A R BE BERE 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEx THER THER THERT
Segment assets PHEE 2,331,723 1,149,193 745,224 4,226,140
Reconciliation: HHE -
Tax recoverable AT 45 o1 % 7E 5,549
Corporate and other unallocated assets REAREMARD L E E 73,753
Total assets BEREAE 4,305,442
Segment liabilities S BEE 7,125 110,000 - 117,125
Reconciliation: -
Tax payable BT IE 3,849
Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE 34
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities RAREMBASEAE 4,202
Total liabilities BELH 125,210
Loan
facilitation Money Securities
31 December 2016 services lending investments Total
BX
—E—~E+=ZA=+—H PR 7 BE BEHRRE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FTAT FAT
Segment assets APBEE 2,441,062 889,234 781,170 4,111,456
Reconciliation: -
Tax recoverable BEqEE S 5,549
Corporate and other unallocated assets ARAREMEARSREE 24,654
Total assets BE®E 4,141,659
Segment liabilities ABEE 10,842 = - 10,842
Reconciliation: -
Tax payable eI 47,179
Deferred tax liabilities BERIEAR 78
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities ARREMBERL AR 2,491
Total liabilities BEHBE 60,590
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. RESFER(E)
(Continued)
Geographical information hEER

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets
REIREFEE 2N EH FREBEE
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RFE ZE—tHF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THE T TET T IT
Hong Kong BB 90,176 62,606 20,431 679
Mainland China eREN: i 183,171 492,780 2,183,669 2,185,757
273,347 555,386 2,204,100 2,186,436
The revenue information is based on the location of WREBERUARFPEBIKE - 3ERSE
customers. The non-current assets are based on the EREEMENAKERTEEINHEE
locations of the assets and exclude available-for-sale & o
investments.
Information about major customers EFREXEREFZER
A summary of revenue earned from each of the individual REGEAREEFAWZE10% A £ 2% 5 EBE
customer with its corresponding segment, which RlEPZWEMESHINNT

contributed over 10% of the Group's revenue for the year is
set out below:

2017 2016
—E-t% g N
Loan
Loan facilitation facilitation
services Money lending services Money lending
segment segment Total segment segment Total
EXHN BFRHN
Bk % 2 3 BEDH Bt A 7% 5 & EEH B B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET THET TET TET TET
Customer A BFH = = = 147,500 = 147,500
Customer B BFZ 117,000 - 117,000 = = =
Customer C BFA 36,996 = 36,996 = = =
Customer D ®FPT = = = 69,449 = 69,449
Customer E BF X N/A* RER* N/A* R@EMA* N/A* RER* 67,500 317 67,817
Customer F BF T = 28,025 28,025 N/A* RER* N/A* REA* NA* FEB*
153,996 28,025 182,021 284,449 317 284,766
@ The corresponding revenue of these customers is not disclosed as ¥ HRZERFTEBANARAERZFE 2RI
they individually did not contribute over 10% of the Group's total =EBBRI0% MY BEBEERSE ZHEER
revenue for the year. o
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

Revenue represents (i) the net invoiced value of services
rendered from operation of P2P financing platform under
the CAIJIA brand and other loan facilitation services; and (ii)

gross proceeds from money lending during the year.
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An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as Wam s H A KRR =2 oM T :
follows:
2017 2016
—E—+F NS
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FE T
Revenue iy #8
Interest income from loan financing ERmE NS WA 108,617 64,374
Loan facilitation services income ERHF N RBUKA 164,730 490,662
Consultancy services income &5 AR A WA - 350
273,347 555,386
2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B it FTHET F& T
Other income and gains Hab W A R W=
Bank interest income R A7 A B A 1,163 1,150
Dividend income from available-  AIftHERE 2 % &
for-sale investments WA - 4,193
Foreign exchange differences, net [E X =58 %5 2 5
Gain on disposal of available-for-
sale investments (transfer from HEAHHERE 2
equity on disposal of W (REERFhRER
HK$30,291,000, net of transaction %2 #£30,291,000/% 7T -
costs) BB R KA) — 30,189
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR Z W= 27 - 16,201
Agency services fee income RIBRTEE WA 13,000 -
Others HAb 2,376 1,689
16,541 53,422
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. PBRBAIER
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ REB BN RMBRGEA) AT
(crediting): BEHEBEN:
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —EF—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Depreciation (note 12) W& (Hrati12) 1,057 4,339
Impairment of available-for-sale A HERERE"
investments* 25,534 11,280
Impairment of other receivables* H fth B UL SR IE R B * — 1,941
Minimum lease payments under KEHEE N2
operating leases =K & IE 16,876 19,720
Auditor’s remuneration % EEM BY & 1,650 1,500
Employee benefit expenses (excluding & & 1& #J A XX
directors’ and chief executive's (TEREEEES
remuneration T A B Z %
(note 7)): (Htat7)) :
- Wages and salaries - IEKRES 20,260 67,101
— Pension scheme contributions - RIREFTEIH 2,813 13,653
23,073 80,754
Foreign exchange differences, net PE W 2= BE F 58 (2) 742
Loss on disposal of items of plant and HEBHENERHEER Z
equipment* BB 470 9,949
@ Items are included in “other expenses” in the consolidated statement 3 ZEHERERGEBRRAZHMAX] -

of profit or loss.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a),
(b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about

Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
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EERRETHRAEHMH

RIE EWHRB - FBREERBGIZE383(1)()
o) I EOERARRRI(REEEMN R E
RO F2HBBEBELFANEERRRITH
ABF BT

Salaries,
allowances
and Pension
benefits in scheme Total
Fees kind contribution remuneration
a2 ENRESE
He REYEF S ez PR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
2017: —E—+F:
Executive directors: HMITES:
Mr. Huang Chuan Fu? = {E 48 kA = = = =
Mr. Liang Jian Hua® RIS = = = =
Ms. Jia Hui® B gL - - = =
Mr. Jiang Yi Ren? B — (T kA = = = =
Ms. Gao Zhenyun'® BREELZ IS - - - =
Mr. Li Jiuhua’ TNEESLET = = = =
Non-executive directors: EHITES:
Mr. Bai Tianhui'® SRS AR = = = =
Mr. Yao Luo' ok & St & = = = =
Ms. Yu Yang? R L2 - - - =
Independent non-executive B IEHITE E :
directors:
Mr. Wong Chun Hung =B LEAE 240 - - 240
Mr. Zheng Zhen B 48 5L A 120 - - 120
Mr. To Langa Samuelson t BA hn 5t 4 120 - - 120
480 = = 480
Chief executive: BRESTHAE:
Ms. Yu Yang* G L - 1,514 15 1,529
480 1,514 15 2,009
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7. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (Continued)

7. EEREETHRAEHME

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contribution remuneration
e EZR  BRAKeEE
we REMERN K 2 PR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FA& T FA& T FA& T FA& T
2016: —E-REF:
Executive directors: PMITES:
Mr. Huang Chuan Fu EEBEE = = - 3
Mr. Liang Jian Hua REESLSE = = - =
Ms. Jia Hui Bt = = = =
Mr. Jiang Yi Ren B—{Eh4E = = = =
Independent non-executive B JEEITE E ¢
directors:
Mr. Wong Chun Hung EHEERAE 240 = = 240
Mr. Zheng Zhen B 48 5 A 120 = = 120
Mr. To Langa Samuelson t BA hn 5t A 120 = = 120
480 - - 480
Chief executive: BEEITHAE:
Ms. Yu Yang* G L = 1,800 18 1,818
480 1,800 18 2,298
' Appointed on 7 September 2017 T RZE—tFNAEHEZE
2 Appointed on 6 October 2017 2 RZE—tFt+ANAEZRE
3 Resigned on 6 October 2017 3 RZE—tLEFFTANAEMT
4 Appointed on 20 January 2016 and resigned on 5 October 2017 ¢ R RNE—A-_THEZARR-_T—t&E+
AEB#E
5 Re-designated as non-executive director after the end of reporting period, 5 RMERRE T \F-_A-HATHERTES

on 2 February 2018

5 Resigned as a non-executive director and the chairman after the end of
reporting period, on 2 February 2018.
7 Appointed on 7 September 2017 and appointed as the chief executive
officer of the Company on 6 October 2017.

There were no other emoluments paid or payable to the
directors during the year (2016: Nil).

There were no arrangement under which a director or the
chief executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration

during the year (2016: Nil).

RBERMRE_ZT-NF_A—HBEFRTES
REF
R-FB—tFNALABZERR-_F—tF+A
NAEZERRRAZTRER

FRAEABECNKNENEZTZEMBM S (=

Z—RF 8\

=

FALEITVEETIZESTRAEBECERUL
RELRAERZEEMFMH 2 LB (=T —
NE ) o
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 8.

The five highest paid employees during the year included
one chief executive (2016: one), details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 7 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining four (2016: four)
highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R Mt

31 December 2017
—E—+F+=-A=+—H

IEREFHEE

FALEESFRETEE —BITHAR

“E-ARF R EFMAEBREHN X
MEE7) e SRR (ZT—RF - W)Wk
ARBAEEXRHTRABZERHEER
FAZHMAFROT:

2017 2016

—E—+tF AN S

HK$’000 HK$'000

TET T3 T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RUMEREWET 3,634 4,476
Performance related bonus RIRENHIE AT 480 2,054
Pension scheme contributions RN 5T &R 72 72
4,086 6,602

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

FINFATRE 2 EETERBTH
ABZBEHEEABDT:

Number of individuals

A

2017 2016

i = Statis

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £%1,000,0007% 7T 2 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T £1,500,00078 7T 2 -
HK$1,5600,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T £2,000,0007% 7T - 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 2,000,001 7T 3,500,000/ 7T - 1
4 4

There were no non-directors and non-chief executive
highest paid employees being granted share option during
the year (2016: Nil).

FAMBAFEETIHERTRARZE
SHEERLBERECTE-RNF &) -
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31 December 2017
—T—+tF+=-A=+—H

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FiS®iRExX
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of BENEGH OB FEARBBEE ZHEHE
16.5% (2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits wR B om M 3E16.5% (ZZFE—73NF 1 16.6%) 2
arising in Hong Kong during the year. TR IREE o
Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated HibiwRERT M M BRAEELE
at the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which FrEml AR CRITBEGTEHE -

the Group operates.

2017 2016
—E—+F —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FE T
Current — Hong Kong BNER — &/
Under-provision in prior years BEFEREEDTR = 1,002
Current — Elsewhere BVAR — E fib ith (&
Charge for the year FAZ T 41,394 87,559
(Over)/under-provision in prior years BEFE(BEEEB)
BETRE (131) 955
Deferred (note 22) R (ff at22) (44) (226)
Total tax charge for the year FRBIES HRE 41,219 89,290
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10.

1.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rate of Hong Kong, where the
Company is headquartered, to the tax expense at the
effective tax rate, is as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R Mt

31 December 2017
—E—+F+=-A=+—H

Fit 15 B B8 <90

BARRRBAEREEZZEREFE
2 BR B A 4 M A 2 B R B S R AR B R R
AAEZRER 2SR

2017 2016
—E—tF ZZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT FE& T
Profit before tax R Mt A& A 128,668 422,364
Tax charged at the Hong Kong statutory 1% & /& A FE #{ £16.5% 1 & 2
tax rate of 16.5% I8 = H 21,230 69,688
Difference in tax rates of subsidiaries HREMAIEZEEREEZHE QA Z
operating in other jurisdictions HEREH 9,736 22,308
Expenses not deductible for tax AR A X 8,917 2,061
Income not subject for tax BARBKA (39) (7,659)
Tax losses utilised from previous periods &h /3 48 7+ HA i %7 18 &5 18 (4) -
Tax losses not recognised RERHIBEE 1,459 882
(Over)/under-provision in respect of BEFE(BERE)
prior years B R (131) 1,957
Others HAh 51 53
Tax charge at the Group's BEAEBERHE321% (ZF—~
effective rate of 32.1% (2016: 21.1%)  F:21.1%)stE 2 H B H 41,219 89,290
DIVIDEND 10. RE
No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended HE-_Z—+tF+=-A= ‘1’ HIEFER
31 December 2017, nor has any dividend been proposed WEENKEZRARE  BFREHRNU
since the end of the reporting period (2016: Nil). R JP 2 R E A Hﬁ \(:i?—/‘_\g :
) o
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 1. BRREBEREFEAEBLER
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE 2 F

PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 3,870,102,000 (2016:
3,424,201,000) in issue during the year.

BRGBIRERARAT

BREABFNCENREF AR L BER
BEABEERRZANEFRAEETLEBR
IN#E T35 883,870,102,0000% (—Z T — /N4 :
3,424,201,000/%) 5t &
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31 December 2017

—
—=

1.

114

+t#+=-A=+—H

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO M. BRAREREEZRFEAERLER
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE B R &)
PARENT (Continued)
The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amounts is EREERANSBIBRES AR LT BER
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary BEABGEFERGHNGTE - sTEFAZE
equity holders of the parent. The weighted average number ARMEFEOHAEFTFAEETEEKEKE
of ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number of (BPARFTEERELRAFE)  UERE
ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in the KRB EEE ST AR R AETHEE
basic earnings per share calculation, and the weighted BRTBEREERERT 2T BRMET
average number of ordinary shares assumed to have been HE o
issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise or
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into
ordinary shares.
The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share EREAREBRANNDERT Y KB
are based on: C
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHETT
Earnings: BF :
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders AR EEFREAREL
of the parent, used in the basic and diluted  # & & F| 2 & A 7]
earnings per share calculations TiREm A AR
1t % F) 82,274 321,907
Number of shares
% 17 2 B
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
Shares: IR 4
Weighted average number of ordinary shares R 5t & & I8 & 74 2 7
in issue during the year used in the basic ZERNEETERRKR
earnings per share calculation hnkE 35 & 3,870,102,000  3,424,201,000

Effect of dilution — weighted average number 58 > §/ 2 - L @K

of ordinary shares:
Mandatory convertible notes

E RECE S
35 1 T2 1 R

10,912,000,000 11,357,901,000

14,782,102,000 14,782,102,000
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12.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 R Mt

12. BER®KRHE

31

December 2017

—=—t#+-A=+-~

Furniture,
Leasehold fittings and Motor
31 December 2017 improvements  equipment vehicles Total
HEWE KA HER
—E2—t+tH&t+=ZA=+—H #15 B AE 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TET TR
At 31 December 2016 and RZE—RF
at 1 January 2017: +ZA=+—-H8Kk
“TZ—+&—f—H:
Cost XA 3,481 5,148 - 8,629
Accumulated depreciation 2EME (2,995) (2,726) - (5,721)
Net carrying amount REFE 486 2,422 - 2,908
At 1 January 2017, net of RZZE—+&—HF—H "
accumulated depreciation KRB RFINE 486 2,422 - 2,908
Additions NE = 289 = 289
Disposals HE - (495) - (495)
Depreciation provided during & A HRH € (47 :26)
the year (note 6) (241) (816) = (1,057)
Exchange realignment BE i, o B 34 69 - 103
At 31 December 2017, net RZZE—+&
of accumulated T=HEF—0H -
depreciation RMBRRFNE 279 1,469 - 1,748
At 31 December 2017: R=T—t&
T=H=EF=8:
Cost RN 3,555 3,574 = 7129
Accumulated depreciation i (3,276) (2,105) - (5,381)
Net carrying amount REFRE 279 1,469 - 1,748
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31 December 2017
—T—+tF+=-A=+—H

12. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

12. BMERKE®E)

Furniture,
Leasehold fittings and Motor
31 December 2016 improvements equipment vehicles Total
HEME BH- - KER
ZE-RETZA=1—H & B P2 @at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FHT
At 1 January 2016: RZF-A"F—A—-R:
Cost BN 11,355 10,428 778 22,561
Accumulated depreciation REE (2,955) (1,259) (545) (4,759)
Net carrying amount REFRE 8,400 9,169 233 17,802
At 1 January 2016, net of RZZE—R"F—A—8"
accumulated depreciation KMk R E 8,400 9,169 233 17,802
Additions NE 90 1,084 = 1174
Disposals HE (5,992) (4,686) = (10,678)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEKB QR (H727)
(note 27) = (464) (139) (603)
Depreciation provided during & A HRH € (41 :26)
the year (note 6) (1,784) (2,461) (94) (4,339)
Exchange realignment b 5 HE & (228) (220) - (448)
At 31 December 2016, net RZZE—RF
of accumulated T=E == -
depreciation KRB RFINE 486 2,422 - 2,908
At 31 December 2016: RZE—RF
S =
Cost (DN 3,481 5,148 = 8,629
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (2,995) (2,726) - (5,721)
Net carrying amount REFRE 486 2,422 - 2,908
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13.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
81 75 R P 5

31 December 2017
—E—+F+=-A=+—H

GOODWILL 13. &
Total
#Et
HK$'000
FA&T
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016, NA—_TE—XRF—H—AB8"
1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017: —E-RF+=-A=+—8"
—E—+tF-—H-BEK
—E—tHF+-_A=+—8:
Cost and carrying amount AN & BR T & B8 2,182,663
Impairment testing of goodwill (GRS
Goodwill acquired through business combinations is R A ES I BRI EERT

allocated to loan facilitation cash-generating unit (the “Loan
Facilitation CGU") for impairment testing.

Loan Facilitation CGU

The recoverable amount of the Loan Facilitation CGU has
been determined by value in use approach adopted by BMI
Appraisals Limited, an independent qualified valuer, based
on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections
based on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by senior management. The following describes
each key assumption on which management has based its
cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing of
goodwill:

° Average revenue growth rate of 12.50% with reference
to the average performance in the past and the
expected returns within the relevant industry;

° Discount rate of 17.21% is used with reference to the
current market data for the relevant industry and
comparable companies; and

° Terminal growth rate of 3% is used with reference to
the PRC’s average inflation rate in the past five years.

The values assigned to the above key assumption on
market development of loan facilitation services industry,
discount rates and inflation rate are consistent with external
information sources.

NHEeELEN(ERPNRESELE
frl]) - SAETTRE R -

EXP T ELELEEN
ERmNReELBNAOKRESREIHE
VEEBEBRMGEEMPMABRFEER QAR
REREBEDE REEXRSAEEER
EZRAFRMBEEETZRESRER A
AAEMGZEREEEE EEER/ETT
AERENAMBARSREMKEZS
BEEREDOT:

o Tl g R EI1250% 0 2 E R
BT Z2BEFHRERTFEHHLO R

O AR E17.21% - E2ZHBITE
RAIBLBR AR ZBRITHHEE : &

* RAKAEEEI%
ERFZFHBERE -

E2EHPEB

NEEREFRTNITRBITEMSER -/
BENBREXZTEBRREND IR 2 HER
SNERE B R — B e
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14.

118

INTANGIBLE ASSETS BREE
Trading
31 December 2016 rights Licence Total
—E—XRF+=-A=+—H R 5 f& BR BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F& T F& T F& T
Cost at 1 January 2016, net of RZE—RE—H—BZKA
accumulated amortisation KA BR 25T 8 - 1,194 1,194
Additions NE 500 = 500
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 27) HEKEB R (H:i227) (500) (1,194) (1,694)

At 31 December 2016

RZE—R"EF+=-A=+—H

At 31 December 2016:
Cost BN

W=F-xF+=A=+-8:

Accumulated amortisation E g - - -
Net carrying amount BR SR = = -

The licence represented the licence plate which enable the
vehicle to travel and hang licence plate in both PRC and
Hong Kong. The licence was renewable every year at
minimal cost and they were considered as having an
indefinite useful life because it was expected to generate
economic benefit to the Group indefinitely.

The trading rights represented the eligibility rights to trade
on or through the Stock Exchange and had no foreseeable
limit to the period over which the Group could use to
generate net cash flows. As a result, the trading rights
were considered by the management of the Group as had
indefinite useful lives because they were expected to
contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the license and
the trading rights were disposed and further details are set
out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.
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15.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
81 75 R P 5

31 December 2017
—E—+F+=-A=+—H

15. AIRHERE

2017 2016
—E—tF = A
HK$°000 HK$'000
T & T T T
Non-current portion: FERENF S
Listed equity investments, at fair value TR AEE -
/NS -] 731,435 718,465

During the year, the gross loss in respect of the Group's
available-for-sale investments recognised in other
comprehensive income amounted to HK$37,052,000 (2016:
HK$339,817,000), of which HK$25,534,000 (2016: a net
gain of HK$28,691,000) was reclassified from other
comprehensive income to the statement of profit or loss for
the year.

The above investments consist of investments in equity
securities which were designated as available-for-sale
financial assets and have no fixed maturity date or coupon
rate.

There was a significant decline in the market value of
certain listed equity investment during the vyear. The
directors consider that such decline indicates that the listed
equity investments have been impaired and an impairment
loss of HK$25,534,000, which included a reclassification
from other comprehensive income of HK$25,534,000, has
been recognised in the statement of profit or loss for the
year.

The market values of the Group's listed equity investments
at the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements was approximately HK$659,956,000.

FA-REMEEKEER AN E B A #
HERE 2B E1E A37,052,0008 T (=%
— 75 4F £ 339,817,000/ JT) + £ 125,534,000
BT (ZE—7RF  FU2528,691,000/87T)
EHEMEARSETDEEFANER
% °

LR EREREERATHKNESREE L
BAZRSKRE YEBETHHAKER

‘2%«3 o

ETETBRAFREZTERFRANK - &=
ERE - BHERERAR ETRAKEER
B ITRFAZEZXRANERREBSIE
25,534,000 - BEREMEEKEE
¥ 8 2 25,534,00078 JT ©

AEB EMBRAKLEREKLGE T RER UL
EBHH 2 TE# A659,956,0008 7T °
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16.

LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

16. BRERKRFE

2017 2016

—E2—+tfF —ET-RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHE T F& T

Loan and interest receivables B E K EF B 1,117,669 878,079

The terms of loan entered with its customers are on credit.
The credit period is generally within one year, extending up
to two years, after monitoring assessment and further
creditworthiness analysis on the debtors reviewed by senior
management. The loan receivables carried at fixed interest
rate ranging from 9% to 15% (2016: 9% to 15%) per
annum. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables and overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s loan and
interest receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit
risk. The Group held collateral or other credit
enhancements over its certain of its loan and interest
receivable balances.

An aged analysis of the loan and interest receivables as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the
commencement of loan agreement entered and the date of
interest income accrued, and net of provisions, is as
follows:

RARMEKIBRPZIEEE R LERIER °
EXHRBEA TR KafhEEEY
BEHEANETERTIHRE-—TEAINE
AEREMF - BIRERZEEFMNEN
TOE £E15E(ZZF —~NF 9E E15[E) o
AEERNBRBEZERKRERZE @ I
HeEAEEECHENa LR - EXE
XAk AEEZER L ERERERNE
TRARFER AEEVYECERRSE
EFRZBER AEEFREETREERK
MEEEnBFEEMREtEEMAER
i

BAAET M B s A B K B s 7 B
AEEBHRHGE - BREREFER
BEMRENBREBEZREDTAT

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E-RF

HK$°000 HK$'000

THER FH T

Within 30 days 30K N - 145,026
30 to 90 days 30FE90K - 93,026
91 to 180 days 912180k = 91,208
181 to 365 days 181 £ 365K 361,078 230,561
Over 365 days i 8365K 756,591 318,258
1,117,669 878,079
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16.

17.

LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The aged analysis of the loan and interest receivables that
are not individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired is as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
81 75 R P 5

31 December 2017
—E—+F+=-A=+—H

16. BFREREFE (&)

I & 8 Bl Sk KR AR R E 2 B ER K
MBZEREDIHMT :

2017 2016

—E—tfF —E—REF

HK$°000 HK$'000

F#& T T

Neither past due nor impaired BE 4% 480 AR I B R B 863,244 453,650
Less than 30 days past due B Bl R30K 148,713 93,026
30 to 90 days past due #1 HI30E 90K = 8,895
91 to 180 days past due B HI91Z=180K - =
181 to 365 days past due % #3181 2365~ 68,962 283,086
Over 365 days past due i HA 48 58 365K 36,750 39,422
1,117,669 878,079

Receivables related to a number of independent customers
that have a good track record to the Group. In addition, the
Group's certain of loan and interest receivables are secured by
share charge, securities accounts, convertible notes and
consumable goods as collateral, as well as real estate located in
Mainland China held by a guarantor.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related
to a large number of diversified customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Based on past experience, the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is
necessary in respect of those receivables that were past
due but not impaired as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit. The credit period is generally 30 to 90 days for its
trade receivables. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables to minimise credit
risk and overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over its trade receivable
balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

17.

BRGBIRERARAT

RUHRBENAEEERFEBECE 2%
FBIUKFPHR - LI AEREE TR
EREMBUBNHIPE  EBFEP A/
BREBELBRER  ARERAMFLR S
Bz i E R o

R H 26 B 7N OB (B 2 R U SR B K BT
VEREBNLCEZEFRR -

REBEESR AATEERABERX
% 5 i 3 40 AL 1AL 2 PP B8R (8
B REARSEFZEEURLMEA
SEERERBENEEATEBKE -

FE U B =X

AEBEEPZEFBRRITERRE - &
WRR K Z R AR — AR T FB30E90K - NE
B B SR R B 2 U R TR A BRI B
LB EERBRAERE MaRER
EEeTHERNBNER AKETERE
BREFREHFEEMNEFARREMES
meRtEE - BRERATEE -
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17. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 17.
An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of

the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of
provisions, is as follows:

FE& Wi Bk R ()

REZEHAEREMREBER - BAEIK
AR MERARZ KRBT

2017 2016

—E—tF —E-RE

HK$'000 HK$'000

TiET FET

31 to 60 days 31260K - 670

The movements in provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

WX BRERBEZBHMNT

2017 2016

—E—tF —EAF

HK$°000 HK$'000

THERT FHETT

At beginning of year 4 4] = 60
Impairment loss reversed BB REEE = (60)

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as

I £ (B Bl R KRR AR E 2 B ERR 2
FREc DTN

follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ET—REF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Less than 30 days past due 1 HR D PA30K - 670

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, the
directors are of the opinion that no provision for impairment
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable.
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18.

19.
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DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 18. & > AARER HMEWRFIE
RECEIVABLES
2017 2016
—EB—tF —E-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHETT
Deposits bi-dcna 11,551 2,845
Prepayments AN 35,015 1,533
Other receivables (note) H fth B UL SR TE (A7 2% ) 856 590
47,422 4,968
Deposits and prepayments under non-current JEREE E D 2
assets portion e MIBHFHIE (19,689) (865)
Current assets portion MEEES 27,733 4,103

Note: Other receivables are either past due or impaired. The financial assets
included in the above balances relate to receivables for which there
was no recent history of default.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Brar:  Et UGB &S sk R (E o sEA Bt
BHRZEMEERMHNI BEOLEZE
WRIRA R o

19. BERAESEEY

2017 2016

—B—tF —E-RE

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET T3 I

Cash and bank balances He MIRITES 140,170 239,735
Time deposits E B 77 3% 78,786 108,622
Cash and cash equivalents HekBReEEY 218,956 348,357

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances and time deposits of the Group denominated in
RMB amounted to HK$146,188,000 (2016:
HK$144,440,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into
other currencies, however, under Mainland China's Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
others currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

RBERR AEEBUAARBFEZRE
MRIT 84 DA 2 TE BB 15 5% 5146,188,000/%5
TL(ZZF — N 1 144,440,000 L) - AR
BATERARAEMER  BREFEH
Wb INE B IR G FI R 4 IE - EE RTEE
BHT ASEERTERERNLSINE
¥R 2ROTBAREI B ABHEME -
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19.

20.

21.

124

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rate based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
period of seven days depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interests at the
respective short term time deposits rates. The bank
balances and time deposits are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

19.

ReRkBEESENE)

RITESREARTERMNXRIE B A
B BHEMERRFAEENEREH
2 FRERLH REBEHEHER
MR EREUK S o $R1T 48 88 &2 E #1173 F W
ROEMY EBROLEBGEEAEZRT -

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 20 HWENREREFER
2017 2016
—E—+F T —RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
Other payables (note) H A B BB (AT 22) 116,984 9,657
Accruals fEEtEH 4,343 3,676
121,327 13,333
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an HttENRBAREE  FHHRAE—F

average term of less than one year.
Note: Included in the above other payables is the refundable deposit of
HK$110,000,000 offered by an independent third party for the
procurement of consumable goods.

MANDATORY CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 20 October 2015, the Company issued zero coupon rate
mandatory convertible notes with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$2,400,000,000 (“MCN"), for the purpose of
satisfying the consideration of HK$2,400,000,000 (subject
to adjustment) pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement
dated 20 May 2015 entered into between the Company,
the controlling shareholder of the Company (the “Vendor")
and the guarantor, to which the Company to acquire 96%
equity interest of the Katar Global Group.

The MCN bear no interest and will mature on 19 October
2020 (the "Maturity Date”). The Company may not redeem
the MCN at its option while the holder of the MCN has the
right to convert their MCN into shares of the Company at a
conversion price of HK$0.2 per share at any time during the
issue date to the Maturity Date, and the MCN is freely
transferrable by the holder of the MCN provided that they
may not be transferred to any connected person of the
Company without written consent of the Company and
compliance of any applicable Listing Rules. Any outstanding
MCN at the Maturity Date will automatically convert to
shares of the Company.
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JEFE M IR it 2 A] 3R |42 € 110,000,000 7T °

BmEEERRE
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4858 /52,400,000,00058 7T 2 Z 208 & 1E 7]
BRER(REAETREERE]  URE
AATEARAERBR(ER])RER
AFEYEBA-_TE—FRERA=-TAHZ
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21.

MANDATORY CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

The summarised information of the MCN is set out as
follows:

20 October 2015
Maturity date 19 October 2020
Original principal amount HK$2,400,000,000
Coupon rate 0%
Conversion price per ordinary share HK$0.2

Issuance date

Further details regarding the principal terms and conditions
of the MCN are contained in the circular of the Company
dated 29 September 2015.

The MCN was classified under equity and no present value of
the fixed interest payment was represented during the life of
the MCN, therefore, no effective interest for the financial
liability element being calculated. The acquisition of the Katar
Global Group was completed on 20 October 2015 and on the
completion date, the fair value of the MCN was
HK$2,341,896,000, based on valuation performed by BMI
Appraisals Limited, independent qualified valuer.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the MCN with
a nominal value of HK$217,600,000 was converted into
1,088,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at a
conversion price of HK$0.2 per share. Immediately after
the conversion, the outstanding principal amount of the
MCN amounted to HK$2,182,400,000, with its fair value
of HK$2,129,564,000 was included in equity component of
convertible notes as at 31 December 2016 and 2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company
and the Vendor entered into the modification deed dated
27 August 2016 (as amended and supplemented by the
supplemental modification deed dated 4 October 2016 and
the second supplemental modification deed dated 7 June
2017) pursuant to which the Company and the Vendor have
conditionally agreed to amend certain terms of the MCN
with an aggregate principal amount of HK$2,182,400,000
(the “Amended and Restated MCN").

21.
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58 1 4 T 48 R TR 4B (4

BH M REEE 2 ERBEEHY AT
E1TH —E—RF+A=+H
R H A —E-_EF+ A+ 1A
RN & =8 2,400,000,0007 7T
ENTN S 0%
TR L AR E R E 0.2 7T
ERHMTRREEEERAREHZ

E—THBERARABEHR/ T —
NANAZTARZBEX

R

BRI RREERENERET  XER
SRR IR R E A ERN SR
|

2HHRE HABAEcRABHLIZE
BRAE - WIENERKEE -FER_-ZF
—hAFETAZtTHEK REBILSER
HEMPMBRFEBRAFETZAEE
BEIMTRREBENR KA ZAFER
2,341,896,00078 7T °

RBEE_ZE-—~"F+A=+—8LHF
f€ - T {E217,600,000/8 JT 2 58 &l £ 7] #2
XK*FE}RE#FlHXOZ/%TEL?&'E
1,088,000,000% A~ 1~ 7] & 18 i - 2 BE 8
g - ?ﬁ%ﬂli‘uﬁﬂx %J%Zﬂﬂa%ﬁﬂxé
¥6/52,182,400,0008 L - MERZZT — <
FEN—_FE—+F+-_A=+—HB2ZzRAF¥E
2,129,564,000% 7T E 5T AR 2 i 2 18 2 #E
=)

RBE_Z—tF+-_A=+—HILFE -
ARAEEFEFAIZHBEA-ZT—AFENA
“THREZEBIREBE(KREPR T —RF
TAOBZ@MAEITRERAER T —
Tt FRNALBZE M RER RIBEET
R Bt ARFHEEF B KR
BIEF] A& # % 52,182,400,000/8 7T £ 58
HUATBRERERE2E THRER((REITIRE
TR ER] -
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+t&E+=-A=+—8”
MANDATORY CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

The summarised information of the Amended and Restated
MCN is set out as follows:

R H R RREEE)

KEETREY ARG R R R 2 BB
(N

Issuance date {7 HH] 31 August 2017 —E2—+t®#NA=+—H

Maturity date Z| H3 H 20 April 2020 (or, if applicable, —ZT=F i@ﬁl +8 (k(m@EmA)
20 April 2024 pursuant to the MR- _ZF WA -+ HIRIE
Amended and Restated MCN  #&4{& 5] & & 71| 58 I 14 AT #2 f% 22
remaining unconverted and ?FIE?‘*‘BE%UWW*%%&F;
outstanding by reason of & BlA-ZT_WFEMPA -+
conversion restriction on 20 B)
April 2020)

Principal amount Wi HK$2,182,400,000 2,182,400,000/%8 7T

Coupon rate FEEX 0% 0%

Conversion price per SR LHPEHIRE HKS0.2 0.2 7T

ordinary share

Further details regarding the principal terms and conditions
of the Amended and Restated MICN are contained in the
circular of the Company dated 5 July 2017.

The fair value of the Amended and Restated MCN was
HK$1,228,455,000, based on the valuation performed
by BMI Appraisals Limited, independent professionally
qualified valuer. Subsequent to the reporting period, on 16
March 2018, the board of directors passed a resolution to
approve that the difference of HK$901,109,000 between
the fair value of the Amended and Restated MCN and the
fair value of the MCN with outstanding principal amounted
to HK$2,129,564,000, was transferred from the equity
component of convertible notes to retained profits.

BREETREI RFENRRERER
Rk MG E—FPFBHNARR A
B_FT—+tFLtARBEZAEK

ERBUEESERGBERMTMABETE
BERARZEBEER 5] R E &
MR AR E B 2 A F (B A1,228,455,000
BT e E@#&iﬁ}%@Z*:’*/\iEﬂJrﬁ
H EE2RBAERMELBITIRET
B BREEAFEERERLASHE
2,129,564,0007% 7T 2 3 il 1 Al R IR IR A
FMEZF‘?E@#%%M 109,000 Tt A 32 f%
EEIESISOEBREREBEF -
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22. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 22. EEBRIEARE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are FRAELEMEEEZEHNOT
as follows:

Fair value
adjustments
arising from

acquisition of
subsidiaries
W B B B D B R A
ZAFERAE
HK$'000
FE T
At 1 January 2016 RZE—X"E—H—H 304
Deferred tax credited to the statement of FAFTABR KR ZEERIENZ9)
profit or loss during the year (note 9) (226)
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 R-_Z—XF+-_A=+—"HK
—E2—+tF—H—H 78
Deferred tax credited to the statement of FANFTAEBEER 2BEERIE (M 79)
profit or loss during the year (note 9) (44)
At 31 December 2017 R-ZZE—+tF+-_HA=+—8H 34
The Group has tax losses of HK$14,327,000 (2016: AREBE G HIEE1E14,327,0008 T (=F —
HK$5,523,000) that are available for offsetting against 7~ £F £ 5,523,000/% yT) A] A AR K 8 B A S
future profits of the companies in which the losses arose. BRAFIZRK BN AN EEBEEDAB
Deferred tax asset has not been recognised in respect of N ERZEEERERELERIESR
these losses as the utilisation of which is uncertain. E
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23.

128

SHARE CAPITAL 23. A&
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —ET-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THT
Authorised: EE
400,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.001 400,000,000,000 % & i%
each H{E0.0018 T 2 &K h 400,000 400,000
Number Share
of shares Share premium
in issue capital account Total
BEfT
R HE BRE ROBEER @5t
'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TET FET
Issued and fully paid: BERTRERE:
At 1 January 2016 RZE—-R§—-HA—H 2,782,102 2,782 721,226 724,008
Shares issued upon conversion 7 5& il 1 AT 32 iR R 5 E AR B 1T
of the MCN (note) tn (47 it) 1,088,000 1,088 211,244 212,332
At 31 December 2016, R-E-A"¥+-A=1+—-8"
1 January 2017 and “E-tE-A-HK
31 December 2017 —2—+E+ZA=+—H 3,870,102 3,870 932,470 936,340

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2016, 1,088,000,000 shares
were issued to Allied Summit Inc. upon exercise of the conversion
rights attaching to the MCN at a conversion price of HK$0.2 per
share (note 217). The difference of HK$211,244,000 between nominal
value of the ordinary shares issued and the then aggregate carrying
amount of the equity component of the MCN at the date of
conversion was transferred to the Company’s share premium
account.
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At EREERN S RERERES
f&0.27% 7T % 17 5 (4 #£21) © A R 7] [ Allied
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24.

25.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

During the annual general meeting held on 12 June 2012
(the "AGM”), the shareholders of the Company duly
approved the relevant resolutions to adopt a new share
option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”) by
authorising the directors to allot and issue up to the 10
percent of the issued share capital of the Company under
the New Share Option Scheme. The directors or an
authorised committee were authorised, at their/its absolute
discretion, to grant options to any person, subjected to the
selection criteria, being an employee, officer, agent,
consultant or representative of the Group, including any
executive or non-executive directors, in order to provide
incentives to the guarantee to contribute to the Group and
to enable the Group to recruit high-calibre employees and
attract resources that were valuable to the Group. Under
the New Share Option Scheme, the Company might grant
options to any participant, in the absolute discretion of the
Board, who had made valuable contribution to the business
of the Group. The subscription price would be a price
determined by the Board and at least the highest of (a) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheets on the date of grant of
the option, which must be a business day; (b) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the option; and
(c) the nominal value of the shares.

No share options were granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed under the New Share Option Scheme during the
year nor outstanding at the end of the reporting period.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 64 of
the consolidated financial statements.

The Group's PRC statutory reserve represents a portion of
the profits of the Group’s subsidiaries which are established
in the PRC has been transferred to reserve fund which are
restricted as to use.
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25.
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26. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 26. BEERFERERZBIHES
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS Bt & 2 7]
Details of the Group's subsidiaries that have material non- BAERFEBRERE 2 AEENE AR
controlling interests are set out below: B
2017 2016

—E—tFE Z—ZT—E

Percentage of equity interest held by FERERREZ

non-controlling interests: (g A=Roalls i
Katar Global Group IZERKEE 4% 4%
Profit Grand Group (disposed during HHEE(REBEEZT

the year ended 31 December 2016) —~F+=ZA=+—H

LFFEEHE) N/A RiEA NA TER

Cornerstone Securities Limited (disposed during HEAZHBR AR (R

the year ended 31 December 2016) BHE-_ZT—XF+=HA

=t+t—HIEFELE) N/A REH NATEH

2017 2016
—E-tF ZT—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Profit for the year allocated to DR FIEERER Z
non-controlling interests: F N H
Katar Global Group IZERKEE 5,175 12,382
Profit Grand Group 1 7 & B = (324)
Cornerstone Securities Limited EREHFBRAF = (901)
Accumulated balances of non-controlling RS HBAIEIE RS 2
interests at the reporting date: RET 4
Katar Global Group MZERKEE 23,599 17,495
Profit Grand Group I ) & = = =
Cornerstone Securities Limited EREFBRAF = =
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26. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 26. FEERFEREZZHIHES
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS B 8 A B ()
(Continued)
The following tables illustrate the summarised financial THRE®M EARNBAR ZHBHEERBEE -
information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts BEZEBANMBRTMAERR QR EEH
disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations: HI 2 & 88 :
Profit  Cornerstone Katar
Grand Securities Global
Group Limited Group
HRE#EH N R B
HEREE BERADF |
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAT FTAT
2017: —F—tF
Revenue W & N/A F & R N/A F & R 199,489
Total expenses % #5 N/A RE R N/A RE R 70,108
Profit for the year F A A N/A R E R N/A R E R 129,381
Total comprehensive income FAN2ER=BE
for the year N/A FE R N/A FE R 152,746
Current assets MBEE N/A RER  NAFRER 595,777
Non-current assets ERBEE N/A 7 iE A N/A 7 iE A 5,250
Current liabilities mBAaE N/A FiE A N/A FiE A (10,974)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE N/A RiE N/A & R (34)
Net cash flows used in operating KEEHEAH 2
activities Reme $HE N/A 7 iE A N/A 7 iE A (135,353)
Net cash flows from investing activites REESHESL 2
REREFHE N/A 7 H N/A 7 H 1,176
Net cash flows from financing activities B & EEHE L 2
RemgFa N/A Fi& B N/A Fi& B -

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents R4 MR S B R D F 58 N/A & N/A & (134,177)

2016: —E-RF:
Revenue 1 % = 263 499,174
Total expenses L (462) (4,770) (189,624)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(ER), & F (462) (4,507) 309,550
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the R 2 H (E18), W%

year B (5) (4,507) 292,617
Current assets mEEE N/A 758 A N/A 758 A 489,033
Non-current assets FERBEE N/A 7~ i@ N/A 7~ i@ 6,473
Current liabilities e AR N/A 7158 A N/A 758 A (58,022)
Non-current liabilities ETBEE N/A 7~ 38 N/A 1 iE F (78)
Net cash flows (used in)/from operating &% 8 (B/) /EL 2R E

activities 8% = (5,067) 127,689
Net cash flows (used in)/from investing R EZEE(BA) EL2HS

activities i & %8 B = (1,056) 47,264
Net cash flows from financing activities BEEHEL B REFHE — 5,000 —
Net (decreasel/increase in cash and cash R&MIRELZBW R L),/

equivalents b 1D == (1,123) 174,953
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27. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

27. HEKHBLHE

2016
AN S
Notes HK$'000
B i FHETT
Net (liabilities)/assets disposed of: BEHEZ(BR) /BEFME:

Plant and equipment % B K &% 12 603

Goodwill 7 B

Intangible assets EmREE 14 1,694

Other long term assets HEmEHEE 205

Cash and bank balances & RIBITHE R 6,611

Prepayments and other receivables T8 3IE & E b fE W 3R 5,997

Cash held on behalf of brokerage REELEBPIFEZ

clients & 12,820

Account payable to brokerage clients JE & 2% P 5K IE (12,820)

Other payables and accruals EmENRIERETER (339,733)

Non-controlling interests IF 12 B HE 2 (1,920)

(326,543)
Exchange fluctuation reserves b 5% B (1,446)
Other payables assigned B8k 2 B A FE 5B 336,288
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries RN N gy 5 16,201
24,500

Satisfied by: AT % 75 = 24+ -

Cash e 24,500
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents ERAEENBARI RS RESEEY Y
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows: TAFEBONTWOT :

2016

AN S

HK$'000

FHET

Cash consideration ReRE 24,500

Cash and bank balances disposed of BEHEZER® RIRITEH (6,611)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents ERALENRBARIZEE R

in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries ReEFEMRAFE 17,889
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OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 28.

The Group leases certain of its office properties under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are
negotiated for terms ranging from one to three years (2016:
one to three years).

At 31 December 2017, the Group had total future minimum

REHEZRH

AEEREBEEEME

ERHHEETHAE
E

ME - PEHELERRZFHNF —

=F(ZE—RNF:—

E=F)o

R-ZEBE—EtF+-_A=+—H XEER

lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases BANRELCEHEHEREHEERNIE
falling due as follows: LR B EE R
2017 2016
B+ —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Within one year —F A 39,725 9,315
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F-EEZFERE
(BEEEMF) 64,263 3,054
103,988 12,369
CAPITAL COMMITMENT 29. EXREE
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in Br _ESCHIFE28 AT SR il 2 48 &8 A EAHE S -
note 28 above, the Group had the following capital REERBERARBUTEFTLEREE
commitments at the end of the reporting period contracted, BN EAE
but not provided for:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHTT
Leasehold improvements THEWMEEE 20,761 —
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30. BEALRS
In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these FRAER G M MR H A B 7l 2 550 -

consolidated financial statements, the Group had the
following transactions with related parties during the year:

(@) Transactions with related parties:

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2016,
1,088,000,000 shares were issued to Allied
Summit Inc., upon exercise of the conversion
rights attaching to the MCN at a conversion
price of HK$0.2 per share. Further details of
which are set out in the Company's
announcement dated 26 May 2016.

BRGBIRERARAT

AEENFANRBEEALTETATRS:

@ REEALETZRS
() RBE-F-AF+-A=t—

HIEFE - ANA P 58 il {4 7T i
P& 32 15 P B #R AR R JEE AT i PF R 8
HMEER0.2E T MAlied Summit
Inc.2%771,088,000,0008% i {5 - #
—SHBEHARARGIBBH A
’%_/\ﬁzﬂﬂ +/\E|Z/_\¢°
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30.

31.

134

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 30 BEALIRSZHE)

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the b) AEHEEXEEBEABZMIE:
Group:
In the opinion of the directors, the directors and chief EERA BEERESTHRAEEAR
executive represented the key management personnel SEFEEEAE  EHEFBEIHNE
of the Group and details are included in note 7 to the BB MERMEET

consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 31. RENEszZEMIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RREHRSENemITACZREASENR
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as ™
follows:
2017 —_E—+tF
Available-
Loans and for-sale
Financial assets receivables investments Total
TREE BEXRKkEWRIE AHHERE mct
HK$°’000 HK$°’000 HK$°’000
FET FET FE T
Available-for-sale investments A] ff i & &% & — 731,435 731,435
Loan and interest receivables & U B & & & & 1,117,669 - 1,117,669
Deposits & 11,551 - 11,551
Other receivables H 8 U 3k 18 856 - 856
Cash and cash equivalents RERRESEEY 218,956 - 218,956
1,349,032 731,435 2,080,467
Financial
liabilities at
Financial liabilities amortised cost
REBHERATE
cHAas ZEmAans
HK$’000
FET
Other payables H &~ 0B 116,984
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3. ZEHBSZEMIT AW

(Continued)
2016 —E—XE
Available-
Loans and for-sale

Financial assets receivables investments Total
SREE B3R R ERFRIE A HERE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T
Available-for-sale investments 7] i i & & & = 718,465 718,465
Loan and interest receivables & U B & & & & 878,079 - 878,079
Trade receivables & Uk BR 3K 670 - 670
Deposits b gcia 2,845 - 2,845
Other receivables H e U 3k IE 590 - 590
Cash and cash equivalents IR&ENEBREEEDY 348,357 - 348,357
1,230,541 718,465 1,949,006
Financial
liabilities at
Financial liabilities amortised cost
K ANGE
cHAE ZEBmasE
HK$'000
T T
Other payables H b FE {9 3B 9,657

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group’s finance department is responsible for
determining the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. The finance
department reports directly to the directors and the audit
committee. At each reporting date, the finance department
analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the
directors. The valuation process and results are discussed
with the audit committee twice a year for interim and
annual financial reporting.

32. ERMTAZAFERAFERF

AEEMBEHPIEEFREFESRTAR
FEZBRRERF MBHFAEEAES
REZZEEHRE REREEH MK
BASMEMTAZEEEZHIETHE
FTERZERZHABE - RERESEHN
iftE -BFEMAREZZESNwEE
RBERER UMMETPHERFEMBRSEZ
A -
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+t#+=-A=+—H
FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on
quoted market prices.

Fair value hierarchy
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value on recurring basis:

32.

EMITAZAFERIFERK

(&)
CRMEERBBZAFTENZIABRR

SN (BRELBFREERINREMRS T
ZARZGERARK -

THTTERBRAAGEAFE:

EHBRAREZRAFERTSREFE -

D FERB
TREEAEESHIAZAFEAER
Al :

KEUGRATEFEZEE:

Fair value measurement using

RATIBAREZAFENE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

As at 31 December 2017 markets inputs inputs

WIERB 5 EAXTEHEE EBAFTHE

R=Z2—tH+=A=+—H HE WAHE BWAYE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B—%H) (B=%4) (B=%4) @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET THET THER THET

Available-for-sale investments:  A[{f K E#& &

Equity investments BAEE 731,435 - - 731,435
731,435 = = 731,435
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32. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 32. €@ T A2 A FERLAFELRH
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (%)
AFEEHB(E)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Fair value measurement using

RRATHBARELRAVEFE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
As at 31 December 2016 markets inputs inputs
P BB T 35 EAABEE SEATAEE
RZE-R"F+=ZRA=+—H HE A SR A\ BB
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(F—%H) (B=%%) (5=%#%) Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET

Available-for-sale investments: A HERE :

Equity investments RAKE 718,465 - - 718,465

718,465 > - 718,465

AREBR-_ZE—+FR-_ZFE—XRF+=-A

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at

fair value as at 31 December 2017 and 2016.

During the vyear, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for the financial assets
(2016: Nil).

Management has assessed that the fair values of financial
assets and liabilities recorded at amortised cost and
considered their carrying amounts approximate their fair
values largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

“t-BYEENRAFEHAEZEZREA

35’:0

FR emEEMmMs  MERE—F&
EE_ZHMERNTETE  NEEA
FEHEZFER(CE—RF:E)-

BEREECIERBHERALRZEREE
RABZAFE RRERESEEAQF
BERE FERAREFITAREHAZ
] o
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138

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments are used to raise
finance for the Group's operations and investments. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such
as loan and interest receivables, trade receivables and other
payables which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are interest rate risk, equity price risk, credit
risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they
are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group's interest-
bearing financial assets. Interest-bearing financial assets are
the interest on loan receivables and deposit with banks.
Interests on deposits with banks based on deposit rates
offered by bank while interests on loan receivables are
based on fixed rates. Therefore, changes in interest rate
would not affect the profit or loss of the Group.

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
securities decrease as a result of changes in the levels of
equity indices and the value of individual securities. The
Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from available-
for-sale investments (note 15) as at 31 December 2017 and
2016. The Group’s listed investments are listed on the
Stock Exchanges and are valued at quoted market prices at
the end of the reporting period.
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Equity price risk (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every
5% (2016: 5%) change in the fair values of the equity
investments, with all other variables held constant and
before any impact on tax, based on their carrying amounts
at the end of the reporting period.
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33. iIKEBEEEERBXE)

PR 2 B 4% L B (48)
TRBETBAREZAFESSS (ZT—
NFE 6% EHHFIHAE(FMBEEMER

HRETEBERFAEARBEE)  THiR®
ERRZEESBETE -

Carrying Increase/
amount of decrease Increase/
equity in profit decrease
instruments before tax in equity
BAIAEZ R Bt A1 % F [N
IRE S DI #hn,H A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH& T FA&T
2017 —E—+tF
Investments listed in: RATH A EmZ&E
Hong Kong — B -
Available-for-sale A#HHE 731,435 - 36,572
2016 —E-REF
Investments listed in: RATHE EmZ2&E
Hong Kong - BB -
Available-for-sale A& 718,465 — 35,923
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations in
relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the
carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The Group’s
credit risk is primarily attributable to the loan, interest and
trade receivables. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
Group has established policies and systems for monitoring
and control of credit risk. The management has delegated
different divisions responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring processes to
ensure that follow up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, management reviews the recoverable
amounts of loan, interest and trade receivables individually
or collectively at each reporting date to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
In this regard, management considers that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

amounts.

The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, deposits and other
receivables, arises from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of those
instruments.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had certain
concentrations of credit risk as 0% (2016: 0%) and 54%
(2016: 31%) of the Group’s loan, interest and trade
receivables were due from the Group's largest customer
and the five largest customers, respectively. Further
qguantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from these receivables are disclosed in
notes 16 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Asia Pacific Silk Road Investment Company Limited 2017 Annual Report

33.

BHEEAREEEERBE@E)
EERRE
AEERXZUF I ARERTEEETM

ERCHATHEEDMHY ZEREERR
RIEAMBRABRAINZEEEZRE
é%°$%§2%§@@$%ﬁ%%%%
FWﬂéﬂﬁﬁW%% SEERE
ZE $Elaﬁmﬁﬁ&ﬁfuﬁ
?ETHM°M@%EﬁTH%W%H%
h BEEBEEGERR FEEFEHEHEM
ERBRE UERKRRETHWRDEH
B30 o poh - BIREE B kB i B
B REFA BAR ERERERNE RER
Hl 2 AR E 5 58 - PAREMR LA AT MR B & 2R
FHRABEERE - sUtME - EEER
REAKBEZEERREARERE -

rEBEEmeREERBEREIRES
EY FREEGEERE) 2EERR

DEREXGHFHROZER B2
MERZFLAZEETSRE °

RBEMR AEEF—EEERAKRET
ZER  TTHRAEERKE - %Wﬂ
BEREWRERZ0% (ZT—NF: 0% &
54% (ZZE—RNF:31%) DRI KBEAEE
ZRABERAKREFE o KEIW%%E
W AEEEZEERRZE— P ELEE
RERE B RMEMF16 K17 E -



33.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk

Internally generated cash flows are the general sources of
funds to finance the operations of the Group. The Group
regularly reviews its major funding positions to ensure it
has adequate financial resources in meeting its financial
obligations. The Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding
by keeping committed credit lines available and sufficient
bank deposits to meet its short term cash requirements.
The Group's liquidity risk management includes diversifying
the funding sources.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities at the
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:
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33. MBEREEEERBX®)

REE T E R
NHMEEZREEREDNAAEEEERN
B2~ RESKR - AKEE M H
TEESMN  UBRERAVBKERE
THBEE AEEEEEREERFAHD
AZEAHREERERBZRITER K
RESZBEE  UENEEMREFER -
AEBZRBDECRAREERFESZ /LA
B2 WIR -

AEBEZREHAUBATRARII D Z2EBMAE
RBERR BB RDOT :

2017 2016
—E—tF —EF—RF
On demand or within one year

BERIN-—FRK

HK$'000 HK$'000

& T T

Other payables H fth & S 3R 116,984 9,657
Capital risk management EXEBER

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
cash and cash equivalents and total equity comprising
issued share capital and reserves.

The directors review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost
of capital and the risks associate with each class of capital,
and take appropriate actions to adjust the Group's capital
structure.

AEBEREERA UHERAEEETE
BREASELE ARKEEELERS
RRETE BRRESKALDR - AEE
ZEBRBEEFHER -

AEEZEAEBHERFRE R kR
THEEVNREZEB(BIERTHRAR
ffé ) HELPX

EXTHRIELRGER - (FRULME TIE
— WD EFEEREARAREZHENRN
HEZRER  IRIEETHURAERE
BMZEAGER -
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34. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

142

(a)

On 19 March 2018, the Group entered into an
extension letter with a borrower (the “Borrower”), an
independent third party, pursuant to which the Group
has agreed to extend the repayment date of several
loans with total principal amount of up to
HK$298,000,000 to 2 March 2019. Prior to 19 March
2018, the Group provided the previous loan facilities
to the Borrower with loan principal amounts of
HK$298,000,000 in aggregate. Further details of
which are set out in the Company’'s announcement
dated 19 March 2018.

On 23 March 2018, the Group and Beijing Yiboantai
Investment Management Company Limited (“Beijing
Yiboantai”), an independent third party, entered into
a transfer agreement, pursuant to which Beijing
Yiboantai has agreed to transfer, and the Group has
agreed to acquire, the trust beneficiary rights
representing 283,310,000 trust units under the trust
scheme effective from 30 September 2014 and all
rights and obligations thereunder, at a consideration of
RMB240,000,000. Further details of which are set out
in the Company’'s announcement dated 23 March
2018.

34.
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35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 35. AA R Z B B AR RN H*K

COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the KRR BEHR B BEMRAFRER A
Company at the end of reporting period is as follows: e
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREBEE
Plant and equipment % 5B K 7% 15 742 679
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIEE 2,317,519 2,317,519
Available-for-sale investments AREERE 613,705 606,267
Deposits and prepayments e RN RIE 19,017 -
Total non-current assets JERBEERE 2,950,983 2,924,465
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Other receivables E b e 3k 18 25,799 2,672
Due from subsidiaries & U T 8 A R 5K IB 627,672 611,530
Tax recoverable A Uy 5] % 18 188 188
Cash and bank balances B & KIR1T 4 6 38,952 22,128
Total current assets mEEELE 692,611 636,518
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables and accruals H fth fB A 3OE K
Est &M 4,203 2,491
Due to subsidiaries JFE 15 B BB A B) 7R IA 292,889 201,136
Total current liabilities mBBELE 297,092 203,627
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 395,519 432,891
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EEZERABAER 3,346,502 3,357,356
EQUITY FE &
Share capital LN 3,870 3,870
Reserves (note) R H ) 3,342,632 3,353,486
Total equity 1% B 3,346,502 3,357,356
Guo Jintong Li Jiuhua
NEE E-I -
Director Director
o EE
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35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 35. XA R Z &AM R \&* (&)

COMPANY (Continued)

Note: B iz -
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: RRRIZEEREWT
Available-
for-sale Equity
Share investments component of
premium revaluation Contributed convertible  Accumulated
account reserve surplus notes losses Total
Bt AHEERE ARREEZ
i B R EfifkE EREH B#H5 R ER @i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FTAT FTET FTAET TR TAT
At 1 January 2016 R=ZFE-"F—A—A 721,226 842,256 277,102 2,341,896 (176,333) 4,006,147
Loss for the year FRER = = = = (313,161) (313,161)
Other comprehensive (loss)/ FREMEE(ER)/
income for the year: U 2
Available-for-sale investments: AEHERE
- Change in fair value -ATEEE = (340,012) = = = (340,012)
- Reclassification adjustments -BENABRHAR = 1,600 - - - 1,600
Total comprehensive loss FREABRLEE
for the year - (338,412) - - (313,161) (651,573)
Issue of new shares upon 1 58 ] 1 AT 42 iR 4R
conversion of the mandatory EEBRERITHRM
convertible notes 211,244 - - (212,332) N (1,088)
At 31 December 2016 and RZZ—R
1 January 2017 +ZA=+-Bk
—T—+t4%-A—H 932,470 503,844 277,102 2,129,564 (489,494) 3,353,486
Loss for the year FRER = = = = (18,465) (18,465)
Other comprehensive (loss)/ FREMEE(ER)/
income for the year: U g
Available-for-sale investments: AEHERE
- Change in fair value - DT EES = (6,794) = = = (6,794)
- Reclassification adjustments -BENHBEHAR 14,405 - - - 14,405
Total comprehensive loss FRNEEABRELEE
for the year - 7611 - - (18,465) (10,854)
Issue of new shares upon 1 58 ] 1 AT 42 iR 4R
conversion of the mandatory EEBRERITHRM
convertible notes - - - - - -
At 31 December 2017 RZT—t§
+-A=+-H 932,470 511,455 277,102 2,129,564 (507,959) 3,342,632
36. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 36. [kEE =
Certain comparative amounts have been represented to AETHEBEFEEY  UFAREFEZ2
conform to the presentation of current year. 7 e
37. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 37. #tEBKHE
The consolidated financial statements were approved and SEMERRESAEEEe RN _E—\F
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 March A+ B ELIZRERE -
2018
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